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Strong growth

Capital return o
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o Worldwide life and pensions PYNBP(") of £4,979m +22% >~
o UK life and pensions PVNBP of £4,472m v2a% .o O
o Worldwide life and pensions new business confribution of £178m -7% - ,’_;
o £16.2bn new institutional funds under management +51%
o EEV(® operating profit of £58¢m + 5%
o Interim dividend 1.87p +7.5%

o Capital return announced - share buyback of £1bn

¥

Group Chief Executive, Tim Breedon, said:

"Legal & General has substantially reshaped both its capital and organisationat structures. We
are now much closer 1o redlising the business model which we envisage taking us forward over
the coming years.

"Having taken into account owr strategic aim of maintaining a AA financial strength rating and
an efficient capital base, able to support the long term growth potential of the business, the
Board has approved a £1bn capital return programme in the form of an on-market share
buyback.

"“The dividend growth rate is increased to 7.5%, reflecting strong cash flows and the profitability of
our business. It is the aim of the Board to have o sustainable dividend policy, one which aims to
build on our hisfory of providing a steady growing stream of income 10 our investors.

“Qur financial results {or the first half of the year demonstrate further progress in our core
protection, savings and investment management operations, while our new business figures show
ihe robusiness of our distribution model. UK economic conditions remain favourable, However,
recent interest rate rises appeor to have slowed aclivity in the housing market. Savings continue
to benefit from the twin catalysts of A-Day and platiorm development. We remain confident that
Legal & General will confinue to build on its competitive position, particularly given progress on
product development, platform technology and extending distribution reach.”
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Financial highlights EEV busis IFRS(M basis

- % change on % change on

H1 2007 H1 2004 H1 2007 H1 2004

Worldwide life and pensions new business (PYNBP) £4.979m 22 N/A N/A
Worldwide life and pensions new business {APE2)) £461m 20 N/A N/A
Worldwide new business {APE} £830m {7] N/A N/A
Contribution from new life and Eensions tzuiirles[L L £178m {7] N/A N/A
Operating profit £58¥m 57 £342m 2
Profit from continuing operations before tax £797m 18 £499m 24
interim dividend per share 1.87p . 7.5 1.87p 7.5
Ordinary shareholders' equity £8,3465m 17 £5,515m 30
Crdinary shareholders’ equity per share 128p 16 84p 29

Notes:
1. Internalionat Financicl Reporting Standards
2. Annuat Premium Equivalent - comprises new annuol premiums 1ogelher with 10% of single premiums

Overview of resulls

Worldwide new life and pensions business grew by 20% on an APE bcusns to £861m {H1 0é: £553mj}. UK life and pensions
vquniesuncreosed by 21% year on year, with strong growth in pensions, investment bonds and individua! annuities.
Tofol worldwlde sales, including retail investmenis, were £830m APE. This compares with £89ém APE in the first half of
2006 which included unusually high volumes of institutional and wholesale transfer business. Legal & General
Investment Management (LGIM] attracted a record £16.2bn of new money in the first six months of the year and now
has over £250bn of funds under management,

On an EEV basis, the Group's operating profit before taxation increased by 5% to £589m (H1 046: £560m). Worldwide
contribution from new life and pensions business reduced 1o £178m {H1 06 £192m), primarily reflecting the change in
mix of new business written in the period. Life and pensions experience variances and operaling assumption
changes were a positive £58m {H1 06: £42m). This resulted primarily from the move in July to charging fees for
investment management services provided to Legal & General Assurance Society Limited {Society) by LGIM on a
higher market referenced basis, rather than the cost recovery basis used historically.

On an IFRS basis, the Group's operating profit increased by 2% to £342m (H) 04: £334m). UK life and pensions
operating profit grew by 16% to £249m (H1 06: £215m) and there were increased contributions from our overseqs life
and pensions business and LGIM. However, these were partly offset by an operating loss of £38m in our general
insurance business (H1 06: £2m profit). reflecling weather-related losses in January and June. The final impact of the
severe flooding from 20 July 2007 has nol yet been quantified. However, early indications suggest that it could give
rse to claims of the order of £30m net of reinsurance in the second half of 2007.

Capital return, dividend policy and ongoing investor communication

In November 2006, Legal & General commitied both to conducting an annuat assessment of the capilal we hold
and to communicating our findings at each set of Inferim results. We indicated that where capital was identified os
clearly in excess of the requirements of the business, this would be returned to sharehoiders.

Following fthis year's detailed assessment of our capital position, we have been able to confirm that the Group
currently holds £ 1bn of capilal in excess of requirements. This assessment hos taken into account the long term
growth potential of the businegss, our capitol requirements and our strategic aim of maintaining a AA financial
strength rating, even following o moderate shock event.

Based on this year's lindings, the Board has approved a £1bn capital relurn programme, in the torm of an on-market
share buyback which will begin shorlly. We will buy shares using a velume-led approach, based on typical buybock
percentages of the average daily volume of Legal & General shares cumently iraded, Whilst we are commitied to
execuling as quickly as possible, there is the potential that this process will kst beyond July 2008,

Mainiaining our AA financial strength rating continues to be a key consiraint on the capital we hold. Legal &
General does not expect the announcement of the capital return progromme 10 have any impact on the current
ratings or ratings outiook of the Group from the rating agencies, Standard & Poor's and Moody's.
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We took a number of actions to ensure that sufficient liquid assets and distributable reserves were available in Legal &
General Group Plc [Group Plc) at 30 June 2007 to support a return of capital to shareholders. During the first half of
2007, Sociely repaid internal subordinated debt of £602m and paid an interim dividend of £400m, both to Group Plc.
we sold approximately £180m of equities held by shareholders’ funds as part of this process.

The Board considered its dividend policy alongside its assessment of capital. It took into account the Group's future
capital requirements, projections of luture profits and dividends from subssidiaries, current investment market
conditions and the aim of maintaining o progressive dividend policy. It concluded that it was appropriote to
increase the 2007 Interim dividend by 7.5% to 1.87p per share.

in addition to conducling annual assessments of capital heid, Legal & General will update its balanced scorecard of
capital measures every six months, to assist investors in tracking movemenls in our capital base against key target
ranges. The 2007 Interim results update can be found in the “Copital and financing™ section below.

lipdate on capital review

Also in November 2006, Legal & General set out the timetable for a detailed review of its capital struciure. The
struciure we have had in place has supporied our strong, profitable growth tor more than a decade. However,
management indicated the need 1o review our shucture in light of regulatory and fiscal developments over recent
years. Our aims are 1o enhance the efiiciency and flexibility of capital we hold, to improve the clarity of capiial
struciure, and to support the continuing profitable growth of our business. We have detailed our progress during the
first half of 2007 below: ‘

1. Legal & General Pensions Limited

In December 2006, we ceded the non-linked non profit pensions and annuity business of Sociely 1o a new, whoily
owned reinsurance company, Legal & General Pensions Limited {LGPL). This was an important first step in the
broader restructuring of our balance sheet. However, as we anticipated, it gave rise to a capital inefliciency of
£0.5bn on a regulatory baosis due 1o the requirement to hold solvency capital in both entilies. We disclosed this at the
2006 Prefiminary resulls and indicated that we would work 1o remove the inefficiency.

The FSA introduced a framework for a new regulatory insurance entity — an Insurance Special Purpose Vehicle (I5PV) -
in December 2004. It remains our preference 1o convert LGPL into an ISPV, This would provide greater structural
flexibility and, we believe, would have the effect of largely reversing the capital inefficiency created by establishing
LGPL. We have lodged an gpplication with the FSA and, together with the ABI, are seeking further clarity on the basis
of taxation of this new type of vehicle. We remain keen to effect the conversion to an ISPV in the second half of 2007.

2. Capita! structure of Society

Legal & General continues to review the long term struclure of Sociely, including the Shareholder Retained Capital
and the Sub-fund. We have appeinted an independent expert to ensure that, in any future restructuring, all
policyholders are treated fairy,

3. Internal investment management contracts

LGIM has historically charged investment management services to Society on a cost recovery basis. From 1 July 2007,
the service will be provided at higher market referenced fees. We believe this aligns our practice with peers,
recognises ihe value of services provided by LGIM and better reflects the generation of profits in the value chain.
Investment management services provided to LGPL have been charged at market referenced fees since ifs
inception.

4. Innovative tier | issue

In May 2007, Legal & General issued £600m of Innovative fier | debt. The proceeds were used in part to repay short
term senior debt and the batlance will be used to finance the acquisition of Nationwide Life and Nationwide Unit Trust
Managers. This issue increased our Group regulatory capital surplus. 1t also counds as equily in the capital models of
the rating agencies, Standard & Poor’s {100%) and mMoody's (75%). further supporting our AA+/Aa1 finoncial strength
ratings.
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Distribution and product developmends

As previously disclosed, we secured new distribution parinerships with Nationwide Building Society and Intelligent
Finance in the first hall of this year. We now expect our relationship with Nationwide to go live in early 2008, slighily
later than the timing originally announced, following the completion of the planned merger of Nationwide Building
Society with Portman Building Society later this year. -

We continue 1o develop new products and improve existing ones. We were pleased with the launch of our open-
architecture Group SIPP product to the corporate pensions market and we have delivered enhancements to our
Group Income Protection, Crifical lliness Cover and high net worih protection products, ameong many others, in the
first half of the year. We expect to launch an international bond product from our new Dublin subsidiary in the
second half of 2007. The bond is cimed at the high net worth segment, will give Legal & General access to the £7bn
International bond market in the UK and will further enhance our suile of open architecture products,

Outlook

Our core savings market has continued to benefit from the ongoing impact of A-Day and the increqsing utilisation of
platforms. Cusiomers remain atiracted to our leading products and services, supported by the strengths of LGIM,
Cumrent investment conditions have the potential to lead 1o some increase in market volatility. However,
demographics continue 1o support the market for long term savings products. ’

Housing market aclivity has come under pressure recently as the interest rate rises appear to have dampened
housing demand, impacting growth in the morligage profection markel. The prolection market will also reflect the
absence of pension term assurance, which contributed to sales growth in the second half of 2004. We are confident
that we can conlinue to improve our market position despite these more challenging conditions - the impact of our
new refationships with Nationwide Building Society, Intelligent Finance and others will, we believe, deliver further
market share growth in 2008.

We conlinue to work to deliver innovative bulk purchase annuity solutions, hamessing the skills in both LGIM and our
annuity business. We have seen an encouraging increase in enquiries from open pensions schemes looking ot their
buy-out options and hove started to see sales coming through. In addition, we expect to conlinue to win significant
volumes of both traditional bulk and individual annuity business from corporales and individuals aitracted to cur
value for money products and consistently good customer service.

We support the broadening of pension provision through the government's personal account initiative. However, we
have expressed concerns about details of the proposals and their likely impact on the existing private pension market.
We remnain actively and constiuctively engaged with government on issues, including taxpayer subsidy, “leveling
down' coniribution levels ang transfers.

We are encouraged by both the approach and direction being taken by the FSA in its Retail Distribution Review. We
see clear benefits in infroducing greater clarity at the point of sale between the cost of advice and the cost of
products but will seek 1o ensure that any changes avoid unnecessary implementation expense and take account of
ihe need for orderly transition. We believe that our diversified distribution mode! positions us favourably to capitalise
on any changes proposed to the regulatory structures around distribution. The Retail Distribution Review is stillin ils
very early stages and we will continue to play an active role in the debate it has stimulated.

Enguirles to:

Investors:

Andrew Palmer, Group Director {Finance]) 020 7528 6286
Jonathan Maddock, Head of Investor Relotfions 020 7528 6298
Nicola Marshall, Invesior Relations Manager 020 7528 6263
Medio:

John Morgan, Media Relations Director 0207528 6213
Anthony Carlisle, Citigate Dewe Rogerson 07973611888
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Notes:
= Issued share capital ai 30 June 2007 was 6,535,517,371 shares of 2.5p each.

+ A copy of this announcement can be found on the "Resulls” poge of cur shareholder welbsite af
hitp:f/investortleqalondgeneral.com/fresuits cim.

« A presentation lo analysts and fund managers wilt take place ai 09.30 BST today at Temple Court,
11 Queen Vicloria Sireet, London EC4N 4TP. There will be a live audiocast of the presentation which can be
accessed al htip://investor legolendgeneral.com/presentaticns.cfm. A replay will be available on this websile
later today. The preseniation slides will be available from 09.20 BST at
hiip:{/invesiorlegalandgeneral.com/presenigiions.cim,

= There will be a live listen only teleconference link to the presentation. UK investors should dial 0800 6942 586
and overseas investors should dial +44 (011452 567 098. The conference I number is 6793361.

The following financial information was approved by the Board on 25 July 2007,

The resulis for the six months to 30 June 2007 and 30 June 2006 are unaudited, but have been subject 1o o review by
the independent auditors and constitute non-statutory acceounts within the meaning of Section 240 of the
Companies Acl 1985. The Group consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2006, published on 13 March
2007, have been filed with the Registrar of Companies and include an independent auditors' report which is
unqualified and does not contain a stalement under either Sections 237(2} or 237(3] of the Companies Acl 1985,

financial calendar.

Ex dividend date for Interim dividend 5 September 2007
Record date for Interim dividend 7 September 2007
Payment date for Interim dividend 1 October 2007
Q3 2007 New business results ‘ 17 October 2007
Q4 2007 New business resulfs 24 January 2008
Preliminary Results 2007 13 March 2008
AGM - taking place at the Instilute of Engineering and Technology, Savoy Place, Londen 14 May 2008
Inderim Results 2008 1 August 2008

A Dividend Reinvestment Plan is available to shareholders.

Forward-looking statements:

This decument may contain certain forward-looking statements with respect to certain of Legal & General Group
Pic’s plans and its cument goals and expectations relaling to future financial condition, performance and resulis. By
their nature forward-looking statements involve risk and uncertainty because they relate to future events and
circumstances which are beyond Legal & General Group Plc’s control, including, among others, UK domestic and
global economic and business conditions, market related risks such as fluctuations in interest rates and exchange
rales, the policies and actions of governmental and regulalory avihorities, the impact of compelilion, the timing.
impact and other uncertainties of future mergers or combinations within relevant industries. As aresult, Legal &
General Group Plc's actual future condition, performance and results may differ materially from the plans. goals and
expectalions set out in Legal & General Group PIC’s forward-locking statements. Legal & General Group Plc does
not undertake to update forward-looking stalements conlained in this document or any other forward-looking
statement it may make.
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Business review

New business

H1 2007 H1 2004

PVNBP PVINBP
£m APE PVNBP Contribution Margin (%) APE PVNBP Confribution  Margin (%)
UK life and pensions:
Protection m 563 5 21 1 535 45 8.0
Annuities 8s 842 87 10.3 71 708 100 14.1
Unit linked bonds 136 1,355 N 1.5 121 1.213 35 30
Pensions - Stakehotder and
other non profit 133 920 {5) (0.5) 93 535 (8} {1.5)
with-profits 132 772 1 1.4 100 602 -3 1.0
Total UK life and pensions new
business 598 4472 145 3.7 494 3613 179 49
Internationol life and pensions 43 507 13 2.6 57 482 13 2.7
Total Ife and pensions new
bUSInESS 481 4.979 178 3.6 553 4,095 192 47
UK retail investmenis 147 N/A N/A N/A 342 N/A N/A N/A
International retail investments 2 N/A N/A N/A 1 NfA N/A N/A
Total new business 830 8%6
Institutional fund management  £16.2bn £10.8bn

UK life and pensions

tegal & General new UK lile and pensions business volumes increased by 24% on a PYNBP basis in the first haif of 2007,
with growth in annuities, pensions and unil linked bonds, logether with slable protection volumes. We saw an
increase in new pensions volumes as a proportion of total new business, reflecting the significant expansion of this
market over the last year.

Protection
Total protection volumes increased by 1% in the first half of 2007 1o £563m on ¢ PVYNBP basis {H1 06: £555m)].

Individual protection annual premiums grew by 5% 1o £82m (H1 0é4: £78m). The effect of increasing interest rates
began to filter through into housing market activity in the second quarter. Legal & General wrote £40m of new
individual protection business in the second quarter of 2007, compared with £42m in the first, although this was
marginally higher than the second quarter of 2006 (£39m).

Group protection annual premiums fell by 12% to £29m (H1 06: £33m) in challenging trading conditions, with
increased competition, particularly in the group life segmenlt. We recently launched an innovative group
income protection product and are encouraged by early feedback from intermediaries,

The protection margin, which incorporates bolh individual and group protection products, increased from 8.0%
inH1 06 1o 9.1% in H1 07. This represented a reduction against the full year 2006 margin of 10.9%. which included
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the benetit of the lower reserving requirements on individual protection products resulting from the
implermentation of the FSA's Policy Stalement 04/14. We indicated in the Preliminary results 2006 that we
expecied this boost to margins o moderate over time, and this has indeed occurred in the first half of 2007,

Annuities

Volumes of both individual and bulk purchase annuities (BPAs) were strong in the first half of 2007 - total new
annuities business on ¢ PYNBP basis increased to £862m {H1 06; £708m),

Sales of single premium individual annuities were up 130% 10 £480m in the first half of the year (H1 0é: £209m), as
the more favourable market conditions of the second half of 2006 continued and bond yields increased further,

Sales of BPASs remained buoyant in the first half of 2007 with 108 policies written, omounting to £382m of single
premiums (H1 06: £499m}. Volumes in this ine of business fluctuate significantly and 2006 was a record year for
new BPA volumes for Legal & General - factors which make prior year comparisons difficult. However, second
quarter volumes of £217m were broadly stable compared with the same period last year {Q2 06; £222m). We
began to see some increased gquotation activily for "new market” schemes in the second quarter, i.e. for open -
as opposed 1o the traditional closed — pension schemes.

The annuities margin is strongly influenced by the mix of new business written and, in particular, by the mix
between lower margin individual and higher margin bulk annuity business. Individual annuifies represented 56%
of total non profit annuity sales, compared with 30% in H1 06 and 41% in FY 06. The aggregate annuity margin for
each period was 10.1%, 14.1% and 11.0% respectively. The annuity margin at FY 06 was reduced by
approximately cne percentage point as a result of the additional solvency capital required following the
creation of LGPL in 2006, and the assumption that assets backing the solvency margin on new business are
invested 50:50 in bonds.equities. This effect remained in place in the first half of 2007.

Unit linked bonds

We continued 1o build scale in our unit linked bond business in the first half of 2007, Sales increased by 12% o
£1,355m (H1 06: £1,213m), supported by additional unit aliocation offers for customers on our Portfolio Bond.
These offers continued in the first half of 2007, but at o lower rate than during the second half of 2006, giving rise
to a reduction in volumes against the second half 2006 {£1,399m). 68% of Portfolio Bond sales in the first half of
the year were writien on-platform, indicating sirong support from IFAs for our bond wrap proposition.

The unil linked bond margin decreased from 2.0% at the full year 2004 to 1.5% in the first hatf 2007, due mainly to
the promoftional otfers mentioned above and competifive conditions.

Pensicns

With changes brought about by pensions A-Day and open architecture, and with improving product economics,
we believe that there is now an opportunity 1o build scale profitably in the pensions market, where we have a
growing market share {based on ABl data - FY 04: 6%; Q1 07: 7%). We continue fo farget single premium transter
business, corporate schemes and incremental business. Annual premiums grew by 11% 1o £70m {H1 04; £463m}
whereas single premium business grew by 1146% to £635m (H1 06: £294m]. Our Individual SIPP product condinues
to perform well, accounting for over 20% of non profit pension sales on a PYNBP basis in the first half of 2007, we
also launched our open architecture Group SIPP in the second quarier.

Supported by improved mix and growing scale, the total non profit pensions margin improved from negative
0.7% in the full year 2006 to negative 0.5% in the first half of 2007,
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With-profits

annual premium sales of with-profits products increased by 27% to £80m in the first hati of 2007 {H1 06: £63m| and
single premium sales by 39% to £522m (H1 0é: £375m). These figures include unit linked savings confracts which
offer o with-profils invesiment option. The strong increase in sales was mainly due to increased pensions volumes
but we also saw increased demand for with-profits bonds. Customers remairt atiracted lo strong investiment
returns on assets backing the with-profits fund.

The with-profits margin remained stoble al 1.4% when compared with the full year 2006 position.

Intemational life and penslons

In the USA, we saw robust sales growth of 13% in the first half of 2007 fo $293mon @ PVINBP basis (H! 06: $260m).
volumes in the Netherlands were down by 12% to €183m {H1 06: €207m) against the backdrop of ongoing
challenging market condilions. However, we believe Ihat we improved our market position over the period.
Sales in France grew strongly by 21% to €346m on o PYNBP basis (H1 06: €285m}. reflecting increased sales of
savings products stimulated by regulatory changes.

Retaill investments

worldwide retail investment sales were £169m APE {H 1 06; £343m APE). In the UK, individual retail invesiment
business was broadly stable in the first half of 2007 af £121m APE (H1 04 £127m APE}. However, the volume of
institutional and wholesale business written was significantly lower at £46m APE (H1 06: £215m APE}. “Inslitutional™
here describes business ransacted with charitable organisalions, friendly societies and other financial institutions
and "wholesale” describes tfransfers from same of our distribution partners. Both ihese types of iransactions are
butky by nature. o

Investment management

LGIM delivered an outstanding £16.2bn of new business in the first half of 2007. an increqse of over £5bn
compared with the first half of 2006 (H1 04 £10.8bn).

Funds under management stood at £253bn at 30 June 2007 (30 June 2004; £211bn), of which £180bn was
invested in index tracking funds on behalf of clients. Our index tracking capabilities, our scale and our
commitment to a high leve! of client service are at the heart of our business modet, and have combined to
deliver strong new business flows over more than a decade.

LGIM continued to expand its capabilities in other product segments. We delivered significant improvements in
aclive equity investment performance and demand for our Structured solutions products and services continued
to grow, with £6.0bn funds under management at 30 June 2007 (30 June 2006: £3.5bn).

In July fhis year, we were delighted fo be recommended by Hermes Investment Management for the provision of

passive equity fund management services to its clients. This is further tesiimony o LGIM's reputation, products
and focus on excellence in customer service,
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Investment maonagement operating profit - IFRS basis

£m H1 2007 H1 2006
Managed pension funds 51 45
Ventures - 2
Property 5

Retail investments

Other income 11 9
Investment management operating profit 73 45
Cost/income ratio 46% 6%

Operating profits from our investmeni management business increased by 12% to £73m (H1 04: £65m). This was due
mainly to the growth in pension funds under management to £1460bn at 30 June 2007 {30 June 2006; £130m), driven
by o combination of excellent new business figures and high levels of client retention. Otherincome of £11m (H1 06:
£9m) included £4m of profits arising from market referenced fees charged for the provision of investment
management services to LGPL. The coslfincome ratic increased to 46% (H} 06! 346%). primarily as a resull of the costs
of transferring to new City premises, scheduled for the second half ot the year, and planned investment in people
and systems across the business.

Our supplementary reporting also includes details of the results of our managed pension funds business on an EEV
basis which con be found in section 3 of the financial information.

General insurance operating result - IFRS basis

H1 2007 H1 2006
Operating Underwriting Operating  Underwriting
£m (loss)/profit result profit result
Househaold (52) (59} 2 {3)
Other 14 1 - &)

General insurance result {38} (48) 2 {6}

Our General insurance business recorded a pre-tax operating loss of £38m in the first half of 2007, compared with a
£2m profit in the same period last year. This was due 1o increased household claims following windstorm Kyrill in
January, which gave rise to £8m in claims, and two flooding events in June this year, giving rise to estimated claims of
£40m net of reinsurance. The final impact of the severe flooding from 20 July 2007 has not yet been quantified.
However, early indications suggest that it could give rise to claims of the order of £30m net of reinsurance in the
second half of 2007. Other operating profit for the first half of 2007 included a profit of £6m following our decision to
withdraw from the heatthcare market earlier in the year.

Other cperational income - IFRS and EEV basis

H1 2007 H1 2006
£m EEV {FRS EEV & IFRS
Shareholders’ other income: .

- Investment return on ordinary shareholders' equity 59 90 &9
- Interest expense {55) (55) {(48)

4 35 21
Other operations - - in
Unallocated corporate and development expenses  ° (18) (18) {3)
Other operational income (14} 17 15

Following the creation of LGPL in 2004, the investment return on LGPL ordinary shareholders' capital on an EEV basis is
reported as covered business within *Contribution from shareholder net worth”. On an IFRS basis, investmend return
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With-profits

Annual premium sales of with-profits products increased by 27% to £80m in the first half of 2007 (H1 06: £63my} and
single premium sales by 39% 1o £522m (H1 06: £375m). These figures include unit linked savings contracts which
offer a with-profits investment option. The strong increase in sales was mainly due to increased pensions volumes
but we also saw incregased demand for with-profits bonds. Customers remain attracted to strong investment
returns on assets backing the with-profits fund.

The with-profits margin remained stable at 1.4% when compared with the full year 2006 position.

intermational life and pensions

In the USA, we saw robust sales growth of 13% in the first half of 2007 to $293m on a PVYNBP basis (H1 06: $260m).
Volumes in the Netherands were down by 12% to €183m [(H1 04: €207m) against the backdrop of ongoing
challenging market conditions. However, we believe that we improved our market position over the period.
Sales in France grew strongly by 21% fo €346m on a PYNBP basis {H1 04: €285m), reflecting increased sales of
savings products stimulated by regulatory changes.

Retail investments

Warldwide retail investmenl sales were £169m APE (H 1 06: £343m APE). In the UK, individual retail investment
business was broadly stable in the first half of 2007 at £121m APE (H1 04: £127m APE). However, the volume of
institutional and wholesale business wrilten was significonily lower at £46m APE (H1 06: £215m APE). “Institutional”
here describes business transacted with charitable organisations, friendly societies and other financial institutions
and "wholesale™ describes transters from some of our disfribution partners. Both these types of transactions are
bulky by nature. o

investment management

LGIM delivered an outstanding £16.2bn of new business in the first half of 2007, an increase of over £5bn
compared with the first half of 2006 {H1 06: £10.8bn).

Funds under management stood at £253bn at 30 June 2007 (30 June 20064: £211bn), of which £180bn was
invested in index fracking funds on behalf of clients. Our index Iracking capabilities, our scale and our
commitment to a high level of client service are at the heart of our business model, and have combined to
deliver strong new business flows over more than a decade.

LGIM continued 1o expond its capabilities in other product segments. We delivered significant improvements in
active equity investment performance and demand for our Structured Solutions products and services continued
to grow, with £4.0bn funds under management ot 30 June 2007 (30 June 2006; £3.5bn).

In July this year, we were delighted (o be recommended by Hermes Investment Management for the provision of

passive equity fund management services 10 its clients. This is further testimony to LGIM's reputation, products
and focus on excellence in customer service.
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Profitability

Consolidated income statement

EEV IFRS
£m H1 2007 H1 2006 H1 2007 H1 2006
From continuing operations: .
Life and pensions 551 456 290 252
investment management ?0 a7 73 65
General insurance (38) 2 (38) 2
Other operafional income (14) 15 17 15
Operating profit 589 540 342 334
Variation from longer term invesiment return 197 113 va 7
Effect of economic assumption changes (6) {18} N/A N/A
Contribution from UK non profit business . * N/A N/A 119 39
Property income attributable to mincrity interests 17 21 17 - 21
Profit from continuing operations before tax 797 476 499 401
Tax (218) (198) (170) (124)
Effect of UK Budget tax changes ?3 - N/A N/A
Profit from continuing operations after tax 672 478 329 277
Profit atfributable to minority interests (17) (21} {17) (21)
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 655 457 312 254
Life ond pensions operating profit — EEV basis

UK International
£m H1 2007 H1 2006 Ht 2007 H1 2006
Contribution from new business (after cost of capital) 165 179 13 13
Contribution from in-force business:
- Expecied return 127 158 40 33
- Experience variances 74 53 (8) (6)
- Operating assumption changes {10} {7} - 3
Development cosis (10} {10} - -
Contribution from shareholder net worth ‘ 151 32 7 8
Life and pensions cperating profit - EEV basls 497 405 54 51

UK life and pensions operating profit - EEV basis
UK life and pensions operating profit increased by 23% to £497m {H1 06: £405m).

The contribution from new business decreased to £165m in the first hatf of 2007 (H1 06: £179m}, with o greater
proportion of pensions business wiitten, a lower unit linked bond margin and a lower margin mix on our annuities
business.

The expected return from in-force business was £127m (H1 06: £158m), reflecting the unwinding at a higher opening
risk discount rate of 7.6% (2006: 7.1%} on a lower opening in-force value, The in-force value was lower al the end of
2004 than at the end of 2005 due o the impact of corporate restructuring and reserve changes, which we
highlighted in our 2004 Preliminary results.

Experience variances for the first half of 2007 were positive £74m (H1 04; positive £53m}. This consisted aimost
exclysively of the effect of moving to market referenced tees for investiment management services provided by LGIM
to Society - these were historically charged on a cost recovery basis. The effect totalled a positive £88m. reflecting
the increased underlying value of with-profits business from adopting the EEV look through principle, ond the small
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reduction in value of non profit business as aresult of allowing for higher regulatory reserves, which now include
market referenced fees.

Operating assumption changes were negative £10m {H1 04: negative £7m).
Development costs of £10m (H1 04; £10m) related primarily to improvements to our pensions administration sysiems.

The contribution from sharehotder net worth was £151m {H1 06: £32m). The shareholder net worth comprises the
embedded value of the SRC and Sub-fund and, since the end of 2006, the shareholder capital of LGPL. The
contribution from shareholder net worth comprised:
- Inrespect of Society: the unwind at a higher opening risk discount rate {7.6% in H1 07 vs 7.1% in H1 06) ona
higher adjusted opening embedded value of the SRC and Sub-fund. This figure was grossed up at a tax rate
of 28% (H1 04: 20%} reflecting the new corporation tax rate from April 2008,
- Inrespect of LGPL: an expecied investment return on the opening shareholder capital, after the payment of
interest on the £400m intemal subordinated debt,
- There were additionally some small negative adjustments amounting to £16m in toial.

International life and pensions operating profit - EEV basis

EEV operating profit from our international operations grew by 6% to £54m (H1 06: £51m}.  This primarily reflected
growih in the expected return, as higher opening risk discount rates were applied to higher opening embedded
values. The contribution from new business for the period reflected the absence of Triple X financing for our U$
protection business.

Life and pensions operating profit - IFRS basis

£m H1 2007 H1 2006
UK operating profit:
- Distribution relating o non profit and shareholder net worth 199 157
- Subordinated debt interest - i8
- With-profits business 50 40
249 215
International operating profit;
USA 32 33
Netherdands 4 (3}
France 5 7
Life and pensions operating profit - IFRS basis 290 252

UK lite and pensions operating profit - IFRS basls
The UK life and pensions operating prolit increased by 16% 10 £249m in the first half of 2007 {H1 06: £215m). This
comprised:
- The distribution relating to non profit and shareholder net worth, which grew by 27% to £199m (H1 04: £157my,
in any year, this is based on the formula agreed with our regulator and is detailed in note 5.04.
- Profits from the with-profits business, which increased by 25% to £50m in H1 07 {H1 04: £40m), reflecting
increases in bonuses applied to a higher level of maturities and other claims.
Internal subordinated debi of £602m was repaid from the SRC to Legal & General Group Plc in December 2006 as
part of the Corporote restructuiing, which we highlighted in our 2006 Preliminary results, There is therefore no
subordinated debt interest fransfer from Society in the first half of 2007. ’

International life and pensions operating profit - IFRS basis

Intemational lite and pensions operating profit grew to £41min the first half of 2007 (H1 04; £37m). This was owing
mainly o an increase in operating profit in our operations in the Netherlands (H1 07: £4m profit; H1 06: £3m loss) -
under IFRS. all assets bul not all liabilities are valued at fair value, leading to ongoing volatility in this line.
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Investment management operating profit - IFRS basis

£m H1 2007 H1 2006
Managed pension funds 51 45
Ventures

Properly 5

Retail investments &

Otherincome 11

Investment management operating profit 73 65
Cost/income ratic 487 36%

Operating profits from our investment management business increased by 12% to £73m (H1 06; £65m}. This was due
mainty to the growth in pension funds under management {o £140bn ot 30 June 2007 (30 June 2004: £130m), driven
by a combination of excellent new business figures and high levels of Client retention, Otherincome of £11m (H1 06;
£9m) included £4m of profits arising from market referenced fees charged for the provision of investment
management services to LGPL. The cosl/income ratio increased 1o 46% (H1 06; 36%). primarily as o result of the costs
of transferring 1o new City premises, scheduled for the second hall of ihe year, and planned investment in people
and systems across the business.

Qur supplementary reporting also includes details of the results of our managed pension funds business on an EEV
basis which can be found in section 3 of the financial information.

General insurance operating result - [ERS basis

H1 2007 H1 2006
Operating Underwrlting Operating  Underwriting
£m {loss)/profit resull profit result
Household (52) (59) 2 (3}
Other 14 11 - (3}

General insurance result (38) (48) 2 (6}

Our General insurance business recorded o pre-tax operating loss of £38m in the first half of 2007, compared with a
£2m profit in the same period last year. This was due to increased household claims following windstorm Kyrilk in
January, which gave rise to £8m in claims, and tweo flooding events in June this year, giving rise 10 estimated claims of
£40m net of reinsurance. The finalimpact of the severe flooding from 20 July 2007 has not yel been quantified.
However, early indications suggest that it could give rise to claims of the order of £30m net of reinsurance in the
second half of 2007, Other operaling profit for the first half of 2007 included a profit of £6m following our decision to
withdraw from the healthcare market earlier in the year.

Other operational income - IFRS and EEV basis

H1 2007 H1 2006
£m EEV IFRS EEV & IFRS
Shareholders’ other income: .

- Investment return on ordinary shareholders’ equity 59 %0 69
- Interest expense {55) (55) {48)

4 35 21
Other operations - - M
Unallocated corporate ond development expenses {18) (18) [5)
Other opergtional income (14} 17 15

following the creation of LGPL in 2006, the invesiment return on LGPL ordinary shareholders’ capilal on an EEV basis is
reported as covered business within “Contribution from sharehclder net worth”. On an IFRS basis, invesiment return
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on LGPL ordinary shareholders' equity is reported within "Other operational income”. The investment return
increosed to £20m (H1 06: £69m} following the growth in opening Society shareholder capital fo £2,.257m (FY 05:
£1,896my),

Interest expense increased to £55m in H1 07, broadly in line with the charge for the second half of 2006 (H2 046: £58m).
Unallocated corporate and development expenses of £18m include ongoeing financial project cosis and the

development of our International bond product.

Profit attributable to equity holders

EEV IFRS
£m ' ' H1 2007 HY 2006 H1 2007 H1 2006
Operating profit 58¢ 560 342 334
Variation from longer term investment return 197 13 21 7
Effect of economic assumplion changes : {8) {18) N/A N/A
Contribution from UK non profit business : N/A N/A 19 39
Property income attributable to mingrity interesis 17 21 17 21
Profit from continving operations before tax 797 476 a59 401
Tax (218) (198} (170) {124)
Effect of UK Budget tax changes ‘ 93 - N/A N/A
Profit from confinuing operations after tax 672 478 329 277
Profit atiributable to minority interests 07N (21) (17) (21
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 655 457 312 256

EEV basis

Below the EEV operating profit line, there were two main variances against the first half of 2006, The variation from
tonger term investment return rose by £84m 1o £197m (H1 04: £113m), primarily as a result of outperformance in
equities and property, partly offset by a reduction in the value of bond portfolios as a result of increased yields,

There was also a one-off increase to embedded value of £93m, relating primarily to the reduction in the corporation
tax rate from 30% to 28% from April 2008,

IFRS basis
The increase in the variation from longer term investment return 1o £21min HY 07 (M1 04; £7m) is principally due to
improved equity returns, parily offset by decreasing bond porticlios as a consequence of rising bond yields.

The net capiial released from the non profit business increased o £153m (H1 06: £110m). Within this, the new business
strain of £142m (H1 04: £185m, after financing arangements) was covered by the expected release from the in-force
book of £211m {H1 04: £264m, after financing arangements), alt on a net of ax basis. These two figures were
substantially lower than the comparatives for H1 06, reflecting the implementation of new reserving rules under the
FSA's Policy Statement 04/14 at the end of 2006. The overall impact of other movements on the net capital released
after tax was positive £38m (H1 06: negative £2m).

In note 4.07 to these results, we indicate that our estimate of the potential IFRS deferred tax charge on a hypothetical
full distribution of the SRC reduced from £717m at the full year 2006 to £295m at the end of June 2007. This resulted
from tax changes in the Finance Act 2007, which could allow capital to be released from the SRC ot o significantly
lower net tax rate than previously.

2007 Interim Results 13



Capital and financing

The Group is required 1o measure and monitor its capital resources on aregulatory as well as an IFRS basis and to
comply with the minimum capital requirements of regulators in each temritory in which il operates. In general, the
requlators require more prudent assumptions than IFRS. Legal & General's total capital resources are substantially in
excess of both total reguiatory capital and the minimum regulatory copital it is required to hold.

Al Group level, the Insurance Groups Directive capital surplus was £2.6bn (31 December 2006: £2.0bn} in excess of
the required capital of £4.5bn {31 December 2004: £4.6bn). The capital requirement included £0.6bn (31 December
2006: £0.6bn) relating to LGPL, which would not be required if LGPL were converted to an ISPV,

The total regulatory capital resowces available o Society, the Group’s main UK operating subsidiary, amounted to
£9.0bn at 30 June 2007 {31 December 2006:; £9.4bn) and exceeded the total capital requirements by £4.5bn (31
December 2006: £4.9bn). The capilal requirement included £0.6bn {31 December 2004: £0.4bn) relating to LGPL.

As al 30 June 2007, the value of the assets supporting the UK with-profits business was estimated to have exceeded
realistic lighilities by £1,174m {31 December 2006: £1,128m]. The required Risk Capital Margin (RCM} for the with-
profits part of the fund, caiculated by reassessing realistic assets and liabilities in financially stressed conditions, was
£236m at 30 June 2007 {31 December 2004: £4465m). The RCM continued to benefit from management actions,
which included refinements to cur managemeni of investment market risk,

In May 2007, the Group issued £600m perpetual capital securities which have been reported as Innovative tier |
regulatory capital for IGD purposes.

Capital balanced scorecard measures
We first oullined our balanced scorecard for capital management in November 2006. These are updated at every
Prefiminary and Interim results announcement.

We will review the planning ranges each year as part of our annual five year financial projection and stress testing
exercise and, if appropriaie, we wil recalibrate them to take account of business volumes, changes o corporate
structure or developmenis in regulatory or financial reporting regimes.

Indicative planning ranges H1 2007 2006
IGD surplus capital £1-2bn £2.6bn £2.0bn
Sociely surplus capiial £2.5-3.5bn £4.5bn £4.9bn
Economic capital strong AA Very strong AA Very strong AA
Return on embedded value Increase over medium term 11.1% 12.5%
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2.01 New business summary

APE' PVNRP! Margin® APE PVNBP Margin
30.04.07 30.06.07 10.06.07 30.05.06 30.06.06 30.06.06
Notes £fm £m % £m £m %
UK ife and pensions 202 598 4,472 37 494 4613 49
intermationat life and pensions 208 43 507 2.6 57 432 2.7
Totat life and pensions 441 4,979 3.8 553 4,095 47
UK retait investments 2.08 187 342
intemational retail investments 2.08 2 1
Total retail investments 169 343
830 894
' 30.06.07 30.06.06
MNotas im £m
instifutional fund management 211 16,226 ' 10,758
APE PVNEP Margin
Fult year Full year Full year
i . 311206 31.12.06 311206
Notes £m im %
UK bfe and pensions 202 1.073 8.106 47
International life and pensions 205 103 824 4.4
Total ife and pensions 1,176 8,930 4.7
UK retait investments 208 664
intemationai retail investments 208 2
Total retail investments b56
1,842
31206
Notes £m
Institutional fund management 2.1 20,450

). Annual PFremium Equivalent (APE) is cakculaied for ioial new business, inchuding unit trusts and 15As buil excheding institufional fJund monagement,

and comprises the new annual premiums together with 10% of single premiums, .
2. The prasent value of new business premiums (PYNBP} on the EEV basis is defined as the present volue of onnual premiums plus single premiums Tor
cny given pericd. It s calcuioted vsing the saome assumptions as for the conlribulicn from new business bul determined as ct The peint of sale.

3. The new busineass margin k defined as the conlribution from new business (including the cost of solvency capital) divided by the PYNBP,
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2.02 Analysis of UK Ife and pensions new business by product

APE Contit- FVYNEF Margin
- bufion
from new
business’
For the six months ended 30 June 2007 £m £m £m %
Protection m 51 563 ?.1
Annuities 85 a7 842 10.1
Savings
- Unit inked honds 136 rd 1.355 1.5
- Pensions, stakeholder ond other non profit 133 {5) 920 (0.5)
With-profits 132 n 772 1.4
Total 598 145 4,472 a7
Cost of copitol 20
Contribution from new business before ¢ost of capital 185
for the six months ended 30 June 20046
Protection 1t 45 555 8.0
Annuities 71 100 708 141
Savings
- Unit inked bonds 121 k! 1.213 30
- Pensions, stakehotder and other non profit 23 2 535 [1.5)
with-profits 100 é 602 1.0
Total 494 179 3.613 49
Cost of capital 3
Contribution from new business before cost of capital 182
For the year ended 31 December 2004
Protection 231 131 1,201 10.9
Annuities 174 191 £,735 1.0
Savings
- Unit inked bonds 261 51 2.612 20
- Pensions, stakeholder and other non profit 208 {10} 1.324 {0.7}
Wwith-profits 199 17 1.232 1.4
Total 1.073 380 8,106 47
Cost of capital 27
Contribution from new business before cost of copital 407

I.The confribution from new business is defined as the prasent value at point of sale of assumed profits from new business written in the perod and

then rolled torward 1o the end of ihe finaoncial pericd using the risk discoun! rate applicable at the end of the reporting penod.

2.03 Internal rate of return on non profit business

30.04.07 30.06.06 31206
3 = %
Non profit intemal rate of retum (including solvency margin} 14 16 16
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2.04 Analysis of UK {ife and pensions PVNBP

Annuatl Present Capltal- Single PVNBP PVNBP PVNEF
premiums value isatlen  premiums
of annuat factor'
premiums . Fulk year
30.06.07 30.04.07 30.06.07 30.06.07 30.06.07 30.06.06 311206
£m £m £m £m £m £€m
Protection m 563 5.1 543 555 1.200
Annuities - - - 862 852 7G8 1,735
Savings
- Unit inked bonds - - - 1,355 1,355 1,213 2,612
- Pensions, siakeholder and other non profit 70 285 41 635 20 535 1,326
With-profits 80 250 3 522 772 602 1.232
Total 281 1,098 4.2 1374 4,472 3.613 8.106
1. The copitalsation factor is the present vaue of onnual preamiums divided by the amount of new annual premiums.
2.05 Analysis of international life and pensions new business
APE Conhl- Cost of PVNBP Margin
bution capltal
hom new
business'
For the six months ended 30 June 2007 Em £m £m £m %
Usa 22 2 3 14% 1.5
Netherands 14 [ 2 124 a.7
france 27 H 5 234 22
Total 43 13 10 507 28
For the six months ended 30 June 2004
USA 21 13} 4 145 (.9}
Netherdands 16 1 2 142 7.4
Fronce 20 5 4 195 2.7
Tota! 57 13 10 482 2.7
For the year ended 31 December 20046
Usa 42 10 6 284 35
Netheronds 29 21 3 258 83
France 32 7 ] 280 2.4
Total 103 38 15 824 4.6
I. Coniribution fom new business ks reported after the cost of coplial,
2.06 Anglysis of intermnational life and penslons new business in local currency
APE Conhi- Costof PVNBP Margin
bution capital
from new .
business'
For the six months ended 30 June 2007 m m m m %
usa 544 %4 57 5293 1.5
Netherlands € €7 €« €183 4.7
France €39 €8 €7 €344 22
For the six monihs ended 30 fune 2004
USA 138 ($5) $7 $260 (1.9)
Nethertonds €23 €15 €3 €207 7.4
France €30 €8 €6 €285 27
For the year ended 31 December 2004
UsA $77 $19 ni $528 3.5
Netherlands €43 €32 €5 €379 8.3
France €46 €10 €9 €411 2.4

1. Contrbytion from new business is reported ofter the cost of copital.
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2.07 Analysis of internafional life and pensions PYNBP

Annual Present Capital- Single PVYNEP PVYNBP PVNBP
premiums value of isation  premiums
annyal factor
premivms Full year
30.06.07 20.04.07 30.04.07 30.04,07 30.06.07 30.06.06 31.12.06
m m m m m m
LisA 544 5293 6.7 - 5293 $2480 $528
Netherands €7 €48 5.9 €135 €183 €207 €379
France €16 €16 7.3 €230 €344 €285 €411
2.08 Analysis of retall investments new business
Annual Single APE Annual Single APE
premiums  premiums premivms  premiums
30.06.07 30.04.07 30.06.07 30.06.06 300606 30.06.06
£Em £m £m im £m £m
UK 12 1,551 147 10 3315 342
France - 15 2 - 10 1
Total 12 1.566 159 0 3,325 343
Annuct Single APE
premiums  premiums
Fullyear Full year Ful year
311206 31,3206 311204
£m £m £m
UK 20 6,443 564
France - 25 2
Totat 20 4,448 1.1
2.09 Analysis of UK new business premiums
Annual Single APE Annyal Single APE APE
premiums  premiums premlums  premiums Full year
30.06.07 30.06.07 30.06.07 30.06.06 30.04.64 30.06.06 31.12.06
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Protection
- Individual 82 - a2 78 - 78 167
- Gioup 29 - 29 33 - 33 64
Annuities
- Individual - 480 48 - 207 21 71
- Bulk purchase - 382 38 - 499 50 103
Savings
- Unit inked bonds - 1.355 138 - 1.213 121 261
- Individual pensions 70 562 124 63 294 93 207
- DWP rebates - 73 7 - . - 1
With-profits
- Annuities 13 3 - iy 4 a
- Individuat pensiors 74 438 1s 62 252 87 165
- DWP rebates 2 - - 41 4 14
- Group pensions & 1 ] ; 1 1 2
< Bonds - 43 5 - 42 4 8
Tolal UK [ile and pensions business 81 3374 598 237 2.590 494 1,073
- Unit trusts 4 1,244 12% 1 3.000 30 596
- 1SAs 8 s a8 g 315 41 &8
Total UX retail investiment business 12 1,551 167 10 3315 342 564
273 4,925 745 247 5905 B38 1,737

Total UK new business
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2.10 Analysis of total UK APE

AFE APE APE
) Full year
30.04.07 30.04.05 312046
£m £m £m
Independent financial advisers 479 418 926
Tied 182 3N 603
Direct 22 25 39
Total UK individual 692 754 1.568
Individual ife and pensiors 525 412 904
Retail investments 187 342 664
Total UK individual - 492 754 1,568
Group life and pensions 73 84 169
Totat UK 745 838 1,737
2.11 Analysis of Institulional fund management new business
Fel year
30.06.07 30.06.06 311204
£Em £m £m
Managed pension funds'
Pooled funds 15,568 8.243 17.878
Segregated funds 443 599 508
Total managed funds 16,0146 8.862 18,484
Other funds’ 210 1,896 2,164
Total 14,226 10,758 20,650
1. New monies from pension tund clents of Lagal & General Assurance (Pensions Management] Limited exciude £7.8bn [(H1 06: £1.7bn, FY 06: £4.4bn)
held through the year on Q temporary basis, generally as par! of portiolo reconsiruciions.
2.Includes segregoted property, property parinerships, ventures partinerships ond Institutional clanis excluding institulional investments In unit lrust funds.
2.12 Institutional fund management new business by invesiment approach
Full year
30.08.07 30.04.06 31.12.04
. % %
Index equities 7.2 340 46.3
Index bonds (including index linked funds and cash) 24.9 467 39.1
Active bonds (including index linked funds and cash) 5.0 99 3.6
Structured solutions 24 79 39
Property 0.5 0.7 0.7
Private equity - 03 0.1
Active equities - 0.5 0.3
Total 100.0 100.0 100.0
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Consolidated income statement
Six months ended 30 June 2007

Full year
30.06.07 30.06.06 31.12.06
Notes £m £m £m
From continuing operations
Life and pensions 3.01/3.02 551 456 1,030
Investment management 3.07 ¥0 87 181
General insuraonce 403 {28} 2 9
Other operational income 308 (14} 15 13
Operating profit 589 560 1,233
Variation from longer term investment return 305 197 113 440
Effect of economic assumption changes 301 () (18} 2
Property income attributable to minority interests 17 21 &7
Corporate restructure 3.16 - - (2168)
Profit from continuing operations before tax attribuvtable to equity holders 797 676 1,546
Tax charge on operating profit {159) [159) [361)
Tox charge on other profits ond losses {5%) {39) {61)
Tox charge on profit from ordinary activities 309 {218) {198) {422}
Effect of UK Budget tax changes 310 93 - -
Taximpoct of corporate restructure 314 - - 322
Profit from ordinary activities after tax &72 478 1,444
Profit alributable to minority interests 414 a7 [2F) (&7)
Profit attributable te equity holders of the Company 655 457 1,379
P P [
Eornings per share 3.n
Based on operating profit from continuing operations after tax attibutable to
equity holders 6.62 6.19 13.45
Based on profii aitribuiatyie to equity holders of the Company 10.08 7.08 21.27
Diluted earnings per share 3n
Based on operoting profit from continuing cperations after tax attibutable to
equity holders .59 6.07 13.36
Based on profit attributabte to equity holders of the Company 10.03 6.59 21.12
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 30 June 2007

A130.06.07 Al130.0606 At31.1206

Notes im £m £m
Assets
Investments 235,303 193.050 213.2258
Long term in-force business asset 2,872 2,943 2.52%

Other assets 5743 4,862 4,614

243,918 202,855  220.371

Equity and liabilitles

Ordinary shareholders' equity 3.13/3.14 8,345 7166 7.0
Minority interests . 414 454 38 414
Total equity LE: Y 7,484 8,345
Subordinated borowings T 4,13 13N 813 818
Unallocated divisible surplus 2277 1,982 2178
Participating contract kabifities 17,231 19,764 19.770
Non-paricipating contract liabilities 205,71 167,124 183,618
Senior borrowings 413 1,332 1.682 1.607
Ofther liabkilities and provisions 5,115 4,004 4,035

243,918 202,855 220.371}

Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
For the six months ended 30 June 2007

Fullyear

30.05.07 30,0606 311206

£m £m £m

Restated'

Fair value losses on cash flow hedges - [3) (3)

Exchange differences on franslofion of overseas operations ’ (§)] {25} {41)

Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes kY] k) 3

Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes frarsferred to unallocoted divisible surplus {25) {28) [}

Income/(expense) recognised directly In equily, net of tax 10 {18) {42)

Frofit from ardinary activities after tox 472 478 1,444

Total recognised income and expense 482 460 1,404
Attibutable to:

Minarity interests 17 21 67

Equity holders of the Company 845 439 1.337

1.The cornsoldaled statament of recognised income and expense for the perdod ended 30 June 2006 has been restated to reduce Ihe actuarial gains
aon the defined benetit scheme and therefore the tetal recognised income and expense by £2é6m. This adjustment is in respect of the movement in
the pension delicit for the covered business. There is no impact on the consolidated shareholders’ equlty.
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Notes to the Financial $tatements

3.01 Profit from continuving operations after tax from covered business

uK Interna- Ufe and Investment Total
fional penslons  manage-
totad ment'

For the six months ended 30 June 2007 Notes £m £Em £m £m £m
Contribution from new business after cost of capital 165 13 178 41 29
Contribufion from in-force business:

- expecied relum 127 40 167 15 182

- experience vanonces 303 74 (8) [1:] 13 81

- operating assumption changes 304 (10) - {10) 3 7)
Devetopmeni costs {10) - (10) m onn
Conlibution from shareholder net worth” 151 7 158 4 1462
Operating profit 497 54 551 75 424
varnation from longer term investment return?® 191 (15) 174 3 179
Effect of economic assumption changes {12) 3 (7} 3 {4)
Profit from continuing operations before tax 874 42 718 81 79y
Tax? {189) {13) (202} (23) (225)
Effect of UK Budget! fax changes 310 Bs - 8s 7 3
Profit from continuing operations after tax 573 29 602 45 6487
For the six months ended 30 June 2004
Contribytion from new business after cost of capital 179 13 192 27 2i9
Contribution from in-force business:

- expecied return 158 33 191 12 203

- experience vaiances 3.03 53 {6) 47 12 59

- operating assumplion changes 3.04 17} 3 {4} 17 13
Devetopment costs {10} - {10} 3] ()
Contribution from shareholder net worth? 32 8 40 3 43
Operating profit 405 51 456 70 526
varigtion from longer term investment retum? 125 (31 94 {8) 86
Effect of economic assumption changes {2) {14} {18} - [18)
Profit rom continuing operatlons before tax 528 4 532 62 574
Tax? (175) (%) {176] {18 {94}
Frofit rom confinuing operations after tax 353 3 356 44 400

1. For covered business, investment management comprises managed pension funds and it included In the total Investment management result of

£90m (H1 06: £87m; FY 0é: £181m}. See note 3.07.

2.For H1 07 the contribution from sharehclder net worlh has been grossed up using a nofional afiributed tax rote of 28% (H) 04: 20%; FY 04: 30%).
3. UK lite and pensions variatian from longer term investment return comprises £97m [H1 04: £59m; FY 04: £185m) relating to the value of in-force business

and £94m (H1 04: £44m; FY 0&: £202m) relating to shareholder net worth.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
3.01 Profit from continuing operations after tax from covered business (continued)

UK Interna- lite and  Investment Totat
tional pensions  manage-
total ment’
for the year ended 3t December 2004 Notes £m £m £m £m £m
Contribution from new business after cost of capital 380 38 418 81 479
Contribution from in-force businass:
- expected return 323 70 393 24 417
- experience variances 303 41 % &0 ' 34 94
- operaling assumplion changes 304 5 17 o 26 45
Development costs . 21} - {21} {1 {22)
Contribution from shareholder net worth? 146 12 158 7 165
Operating profit B74 154 1,030 151 1.181
Varigtion from longer ferm invesiment retum? 387 (21) 346 13 379
Effect of economic assumption changes [5) 7 2 - 2
Corporaie resiructure [2}8) - {216) - {216}
Profit from ¢ontinuing operations before fax 1.040 142 1.182 164 1,346
Toxt {337) {45) (382) (49} (431}
Tax impoact of corporate restructure A8 322 - 322 - 322
1,025 97 1,122 115 1,237

Profit trom continuing opetations after tax

1. For covered business, Investment management comprises managed pension tunds and & included in the total Investiment management result of

£70m (H1 04: £87m; FY 06: £181m). See note 3.07.

2.For H1 07 the coniribution from shareholder nel worth has been grossed up using o notionaol attributed tax rate of 28% (H1 04: 20%; FY 04: 30%).

3. UK lile and pensions variation trom longer term investment refurn comprises £97m [H) 04: £59m; FY 04: £185m} relating to the value of In-force business

and £94m (H1 04: £66m; FY 04: £202m) relating to shareholder net worth.

3.02 Life and pensions operating profit

Full year
30.04.07 30.06.06 31,1206
£m £m £m

UK 497 405 874
USA 23 20 89
Netherands 19 17 45
France 12 14 22
551 454 1.030

2007 Intenm Results 23




S A AP e AT BT T A Aer Al Sl Ber Al 7 AT A

Notes to the Financlal Statements
3.03 Analysis of experence varances

UK Inferna- {ite and Investment Total
tional pensions  manage-
total ment
For the six months ended 30 June 2007 £m Em £m £m £m
Persistency (3) (2) (5 é 1
Moriglty / morbidity s é n - n
Expenses ") (3 (12) (2) (14)
Othear 81 k) 74 ? 83
74 (&) 68 13 81

Full experience investigations are not undertaken at the half yeor. A conservalive estimate is made of both positive and negative
variances.

UK other expenence vorances of £81m principally comprise the impact of introducing market referenced fees for the investment
management services provided to Scciety and LGPL by Legal & General Investment Management [£88m) which are recognised on a
look through basis.

Investment management other experience vanance of £9m includes the effect of higher than assurmed ‘other income’ and average
tees.

For the six months ended 30 June 2004

Persistency (5] 4 ) 4 3
Mortalty / morbidity & 7} L}] - m
Expenses n - {1 n {2)
Other 53 {3} 50 9 5%

53 (8) 47 12 59

UK other experence variances of £53m principally comprise the impact of the release of prudent margins ds more data is loaded
onto the BPA administrafion system [(£17m) and opening adjustments {£3%m) primarily o reflect a revision of assessments of prior anc
future tax. These opening adjusiments had a broadly nevutral effect on the embedded value with the positive variance here being
cffset by a negative variance in the contibutfion from shareholder net worth.

Investment management other experience vaiances of £2minclude the effect of higher average fee rates than assumed,

For the yeat ended 31 December 2006

Persistency {15} 2 {13) 12 {1

Mortality / morbidity 10 2] ] - ]
Expenses 2 - 2 - 2
Other 44 26 70 22 92

41 19 40 34 94

2006 UK other experience vorances of £44m prncipally comprise the impact of the release of predent marging as more data is loaded
onto the BPA administration system (£33m) and opening adjustments (£34m} primarily to reflect o revision of assessments of prior ond
future tax. These opening adjusiments had a broadly neutral effect on the embedded value, with the positive variance here being
offset by a negotive variance in the contiibution from sharehotder net worth, This is parfially offset by differences between actual and
maodelled tax and an increase in defemed tox provisions (-£21m).

2006 intemationat other experence varionces relates primaily o the impact of Triple X financing.

2006 Investment management other experience varances of £22m includes the eflect of higher average fee rates than assumed
(£17my).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
3.04 Analysls of operaling assumption changes

1} 4 Intemna- lite and  Invesiment Total

Honal pensions manage-

total ment
For the six months ended 30 June 2007 £m £m £m £m £m
Persistency - - . . .
Mortalily / morbidity - - - . .
Expenses (&} . {8) " {15)
Other (4} - (4) 12 8
o - o 3 {7}

Full experience invasiigations are not underlaken al the half yeai. A conservalive approachis taken when revlsing any future
operaling assumptions.

investment monagement other operating assumption changes of £12m comprise the conlinuallon of tha fen year lapse assumption
for ali contracts through the extension of the modellng period {£10m) coupled with higher fee and other income assumptions (£2rm).

For the six months ended 30 June 2004

Persistency {7} 9 2 - 2
Mortality f morbidity - (6) {8 - {6}
Expenses {12) - {12) - (12)
Other 12 . 12 17 29

7 3 {41 17 13

UK other operating assumpftion changes of £12m principally comprise the impact of revisions to the anticipated future releases of
prudent margins as more data is loaded onto the BPA administration system.

Investment managerment other operaling assumption changes of £17m principally anise frorm the contfinuation of the ten year
lapse assumption for all contracts through the extension of the modelling period.

For the year ended 31 December 2004

Persistency {12) 21 9 - 9

Mortality f morbidity {5} 7) (12} - (12}
Expenses (80) 4 (76} i} (77}
Other 102 ( 101 27 128

5 17 22 26 48

2006 UK expenses of -£80m relote 16 an assumed increose in future expenses in relation to the management of existing protection
policies {-£33m} and an anticipated nise in investment management costs {-£40m). The lafter relotes to the meve to new City
premises in 2007 and the development of our structured solutions and US based fixed income teams,

2006 UK other operating assumption chcngés of £102m primarily relate to the impact of PS 04/14 on realistic protection reserving
after the recopture of financial reinsurance {£64m) and changes to annuity investiment policy (£19m). together with a reassessment
of future reserve releases as data is loaded onto the BPA administration system {£23m).

2006 Invesiment management other operating assumption changes of £27m arise from the continuation of the ten year lapse

assumption for all contracts through the extension of the modeling period {£15m) coupled with higher fee and income assumplions
{£12m}.

2007 Interim Rasulis 25



Notes to the Financial Statements
3.05 Variation from longer term invesiment retum

Full year

30.05.07 30.058.06 310206

£m £m £m

Total covered business 179 - 86 379
investment monagement' M - m
General insurance 7 ] {71
Other operationalincome? 23 28 a9
) T a 197 13 480

1. Norrcovered invettmen! managemen! business,
2.varalion from longer term invesiment return on shareholders’ equity excludes the elemen! relaling o LGPL on the IFRS basis.

3.04 Time valuve of options ond guarantees

A130.06.07 A1300406 AY31.1204

£m £m £m
Life and pensions
UK non profit 4 16 4
UK with-profits ! 1 2 2
International 11 12 12
. 18 30 18
3.07 Investment management income statement
Full year
30.05.07 30.06.06 31206
£m £m Emn
From confinving operations'
Managed pension funds ’ 75 70 151
ventures - 4
Property 5 é
Reiqil investments & 1
Otherincome?® 4 P 9
Operating profit rom investment management 90 a7 181
variation from fonger term investment return 3 {8} 13
Ettect of economic assumpfion changes 3 - -
Profit on ordinory activities before tax 26 79 194
Tax (27 [23) 158)
114 56 136

Profit on ordinary activities ofter fax

Investment management comprises the manoged pension funds business on an EEV basis and other investment management

business on an IFRS basis,

1. Operating prolitin H1 07 excludes £4m of profils arising from the provision of investment management services at market referenced rates to the
covered business which are reporied on o look through basis and as a consaquence included in the UK lite and pensions covered business on an EEV
basis.

2. Other income excludes the element relating 1o managed pension tunds on the IFRS basis,

2007 Intarim Resully 26




Lurvpsllan! LinnivcuJdcud ¥VuG

Notes to the Financial Statements
3.08 Other opergtional income

Fullyear
30.04.07 30.06.04 311204
£m £m £m
Shareholders’ other income
Investment return on sharehelders’ equiiy' 59 49 134
Interest expense (55) {48) {106}
4 21 28
Other operations? - m {2)
Unallocoted comporole and development expenses (18) (5) (13}
(14) 15 13
1. Invesimeni return on shareholders’ equity excludes the element relating to LGPL on the IFRS basis of £31m [H1 0é: £nil, FY G4: £5m).
2. Principaly the regulaled morigoge network and Colunds,
3.09 Analysis of tax
Proflt/(loss) Tax  Profit/{loss) Tax  Profitfloss) | Tox
before  (charge)/ betore  [charge}/ before  [charge)/
fax credit tax - credi tax credit
Full year Full year
30.05.07 30.08.07 30.06.06 30.06.06 311206 301206
£m £m £m £m £m £m
From continuing operations
UK life and pensions 497 {139) 405 {i21) 874 [2&2)
Intermnational ife and pensions 54 (18) 51 {16) 156 {51)
551 {155) 456 {137} 1.030 1313)
Investment management 90 (28) 87 [(25) 181 (54}
General insuronce {38) 12 2 - 9 {2)
QOther ocperational income (14) 10 15 3 13 8
Operating profit 589 (15%) 560 (159} 1,233 {361}
varation from longer term investment return 197 {61) 13 {45} 460 {128}
Effect of economic assumption changes {4} 2 {18) & 2 2
Property income attributable o minority interests 17 - 21 - 47 -
Corporote restructure - - - - {214) 65
Profit from continuing operations before tax / Tax 797 (218) 676 (198} 1,546 {422)

3.10 Effect of UK Budget tax changes

The Fnance Bill 2007 contains two measures which increased the UK embedded value by £93m. The reductionin the UK comporation
fax rate from 30% to 28% with effect from 1 April 2008 increased the post-tax profits from the UK lite and pensions and managed pension
funds businesses reported on an EEV basis over the projection period. The effect was 1o increase the UK embedded value by £101m,
This was offset by a reguction of £8m from the requirement to tax the loan interest payable by LGPL to the SRC at the full UK corporation

tox rate,

For the purposes of grossing up the movement in the UK embedded value 1o report pre-tax profits, the nofional aifibuted tox rate was

28% (H} 06: 30%: FY 04: 30%).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
3.11 Eamings per share

{g)} Earnings per share
Profit/(loss) Tax Profit/(loss) Per share  Profit/{loss) Tax  Profit/{loss} Per share
before tax  [charge)/ atter tax before tax  {chargels after tax
credi! credit
30.06.07 30.08.07 30.05.07 30.05.07 300406 30.06.06 30,0606 I0.06.06
£m £m £m P £m £m £m p
Operating profit from continving operations 589 (159) 430 8,62 560 [159] 401 619
Variation from longer term investment return 197 (81) 134 2.09 i13 {45) 68 105
Effect ot economic assurmnplion changes {8) 2 (4) {0.08) [18) é {12) {0.19)
Profit from discontinued operations - - - - - - - -
Effect of UK Budget tax changes - 3 3 1.43 - - - -
Distibutions on subordinated bomowings
designated as equity - - . - . R
Earnings per share based on profit
ottributable to equity holders 780 (125) 655 10.08 655 {198) 457 7.05
Profit/{loss} Tax  Profitf{kiss) Per share
before tax  {charge}/ after tax
credit
Full year Fullyear Full year Full year
1.12.06 31.1206 31.12.046 31.12.06
£m £m £m p
Operating profit fom continuing operalions 1,233 {361} 872 13.45
Variation fram longer term investment returm 460 {128) 332 512
Effect of economic assumption changes 2 2 4 0.06
Profit fram discontinued operations - - - -
Corporate restructure {218} 65 {151) {2.33)
Tax impact of corporate restruciure - 322 322 497
Distibutions on subordinated borrowings
designated as equity - -
Earnings per share based on prolit
attributable to equity hotders 1.479 {100) 1,379 21.27
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Notes o the Financlal Statements

3.11 Earnings per share {continved)

(b}  Ditvted earnings per share

()] Based on operaling profit from continuing operations after tax

Dituted eamings per share

Profit Number  Pershare Profit Number Per share
aftertax  of shares' aftertax  of shores'
30.06.07 30.06.07 30.06.07 30.06.06 30.04.06 30.04.06
£m m P £m m 23
Operafing profit from continving operations after tox 430 8,493 4,62 401 6,478 6.19
Net shares under aptions allocable for no further consideration . a7 {0.03) - 44 [0.04)
Converible bonds outstanding . - 12 285 {0.08)
Dilvted eamings per share 430 4,530 6.5¢ 413 6,804 6.07
Profit Number Per share
aftertax  of shares'
Full year Full year Fult year
311206 31.12.06 31,1206
£m m 5]
Operating profit from conlinving operations ofter tax 872 6.483 §3.45
Net shares under options allocable for no further consideration - 46 10.0%}
Diluted earnings per share 872 6,529 13.36
(i Based on profit athibutable to equity holders of the Company
Profit Number  Per share Profit Number Per share
aftertox  of shares' aftertax  of shares'
30.04.07 30.046.07 30.04.07 300606 0.0604 30.0606
£m m p £m m P
Profit athributable to equity holders of the Company 455 6,493 10.08 457 6,478 7.05
Net shares under options ollocable for no further consideration - 37 {0.05) - 41 {0.04)
. Convertible bends outstanding - - . 12 285 {0.12)
Dilvied earnings per share 455 6.530 10.03 469 6,804 6,89
Profit Number Per share
after tax  of shares'
Full year Full year Full year
311206 A.9206 311206
Im m p
Profit atiributable to equily holders of the Company 1.379 6,483 21.27
Net shares under options allocable for no further consideration - 44 {0.15)
1,379 6,529 21,12

1. Weighted average number of shares.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
3.12 Embedded value reconciliation

UK 114 UK Internafional Ufe and Investment Total
value of shareholder Itfe and life and penstons  manage-
in-losce  nelworth’ pensions pensions total ment’
As at 30 June 2007 Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Al 1 Jonuary
Value of in-force business [VIF) 2,428 - 2,428 652 3.080 281 3,361
Shareholder net worth (SNW) - 3sas 3828 261 4 089 194 4,283
2,428 3828 6,256 913 1.189 475 7.644
Exchange rale movemenis - - - (18) (18) - {i8)
2,428 3,828 8,256 895 7,151 475 7,425

Profit for the period:
- New business contribution 237 {118) ne
- Expected return on VIF 1 - 1
- Expeacted raturn - fransfer 10 SNW {172) 172 -
- Less; expected movement in contingent loan? 29 (29) .
- Experience vanances 143 (?9) 44
- Operating assumption changes 3 (12) [£2)
- Development costs - (8) (8)
- Expected return on SNW - 2 21
- Investment variances 24 114 138
- Economic assumpftion changes (1) 2 (7)
- Effect of UK Budget tox changes 48 38 84
Profit for the period’ 32 181 573 29 602 85 867
Capital maovements ¥ - B - 73 73 - 73
Distributions relating to:
- Non profit 504 () (61} (1)}
- With-profits {35) (35)
- Shareholder nel worth 5.04 (a) (78) (78)
Distributions {35} (139) (174) . {174) - (174)
Movement in pension deficit - 23 3 - 23 - 23
Transfer to non-covered business® - 3) 3) - 3 - 3)
Embedded vatve 3.13/3.14 2,785 3.8%0 8,675 997 7,672 540 8,212
Represented by:

Non profit 1,902 1,902

with-profits 883 B33
volue of in-force business 2,785 - 2,785 107 3492 e 3,802
Shareholder net worth - 3avo 3,890 2%0 4,180 230 4,410

1. UK SNW represents the amounts in the Society long term tund and LGPL sharehclder capital which are regarded as either required copital or free

surplus held within the covered business.

2.Invastment manogement covered business comprises managed pension lunds and [s included in the toial Investment management shareholders’

equity ol £471m.

3. On an EEV basis. the contingent toan [between SRC ond LGFL} is modelled as an asset of SNW. As prolits from the in-force business of LGPL are eomed,
cash isreaised and ransterred to SNW and the contingent loan asses is reduced accordingly. The expected movement inchudes both repayment of
capilal relating to in-force business and drawdown of loan relating to new business written in the period.

4.Inchuded in tha pralii for the pefied is an inter-fund transfer from SRC {included in SNW) to non prolil (included in VIF) of £35m.

5. Capital movements comprise £44m ($90m) ol capitalinjected inlo the USA operation and £27m {€40m)] injected into the French operation.

6. The transfer o non-covered business represents the IFRS profits arising in the period from ihe provision of investment maonagement services oy Legal &
Geaneral Investrmant Management 1o the UK life ond pensions coverad business, which have been ingluded in the operating profit of the covered

business on a look through basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.12 Embedded value reconcliliation (continued)

oot UK . UK UK Internotional Lite onad  Investment Tota!
valve of  sharehoider lifer and lifer aned pensions  manage-
indorce  networth’  pensions  pensions total ment?
As at 30 June 20046 Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m im
At 1 January
Value of in-force business (VIF) 3,142 - 3,142 570 3712 238 3,950
Shareholder net worth (SNW) - 1,762 1,762 298 2,060 184 2,244
3,142 1.762 4.904 868 5772 422 4.194
Exchange rate movements - - - {39) 139} - (39}
.3,142 1.762 4,904 829 5733 422 6,155
Profit for the perod:
- New business contribution 248 {123} 125
- Expected return on VIF . B [RR]
- Expected return - fronsfer 10 SNW [t80}] - 180 -
- Experience variances 42 (58) 4
- Operating assumption changes 13 LE {5}
- Development costs . {7) {7)
- Expected return on SNW - 56 56
- Investiment variances 40 k1] 7t
- Economic assumption changes {3} 1 (2}
- Effect of UK Budget tax changes - - -
Profit tor the period’ 291 82 353 3 asé 44 400
Capital movements - ' - - 17 17 - 17
Distibutions relating 1o:
- Non profit 5.04 [a} {67) {67)
- With-profits (28) 128)
- Sharehotder net worth 5.04 [0} {43} {43)
- Subordinated debt {13) {13)
Distibutions (28) (123} (151) (154 {151)
Movement in pension deficit - 13 13 - 13 - 13
Embedded valve 3.13/3.34 3,405 1,714 51¢ 849 5,968 466 6,434
Represented by:
MNon profit 756 754
with-profits 2,649 2,649
Value of in-force business 3,405 - 3,405 601 4,006 250 4,256
Sharehotder net worth - 1,714 1,714 248 1,962 216 2,178

1. UK SNW reprasants tha amounlsin the Society long term fund which are regarded as either required capital or free surplus held within the covered

business.

2. investment management covered business comprises managed pendon funds and is included in the total Invesiment management shareholders’
A

equity of £564m.

3.Inciided in the profit lor the pedod is an inter-fund transfer from non profit fincluded in VIF) to SRC {included in SNW) of £7m,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
3.12 Embedded value reconclliation {continved)

ux UK UK International liteand Invesiment Total
value of shareholder ife ond tife and pensions manage-
inforce  net worth! pensians pensions total ment?
As at 31 December 2006 Notes £m £m £m &m £m - Em £m
At 1 January
Yalue of in-force business (VIF} 3,142 - 3.142 570 372 238 3.950
Shareholder net worth (SNW) - 1762 1,762 298 2.060 184 2,244
3.142 1,762 4,904 848 5772 422 5,194
Exchange rote movements - - - {78} (78) - {78)
3.142 1,762 4,904 790 5,494 422 8,116

Profit for the period:
- New business contribution 485 219) 266
- Expacied return on VIF 226 - 226
- Expected return - transfer to SNW - [293) 293 -
- Experience vanances {160) 181 b
- Operaling assumption changes [284) 284 2
- Development costs - {14) [14)
- Expected refurn on SNW - 112 112
- Investment varances (56} 320 264
- Economic assumption changes {5) 2 {3)
- Corporate restructure (3é1f 410 {151)
- Tax impoct of Corporote restruciure - 322 322
Profit for the period® . [648) 1,673 1,025 97 1.122 15 1,237
Capital movements? - 698 &98 3 729 - 729
Distributions refating to:
- Non profit 504 (a) (110} (110
- With-profits {64) [66)
- Shareholder net worth 5.04 (o) {162} {182}
- Suberdinaled debt (24) {24) )
Distributions {66) (296} (382) 15} {367) {62) {429}
Movement in pension deficit - 4] (95 - {?} - {?)
Embedded value 3.13/3.414 2,428 3.828 5,256 213 7.16%9 475 7.644
Represented by:

Non profit 1.643 1,643

With-profits 785 785
value of in-force business 2,428 - 2,428 652 3,080 281 3.381
Shareholder net worth - 3.828 3.828 281 4,089 194 4,283

1. UK SNW represents the omountsin the Sociely long term fund and LGPL shareholder caplial which are regarded as either required capital or free

surpius hetd within the covered business. .
2. investment managemen! covered business comprises monaged pendon funds and is included in the fotal Investmen: monagement shareholders'
aquity of £592m.

3. Included in the profit for the period Is aninter-fund transter from non prefit {incivded in VIF) to SRC (Included in SNW) of £1,222m.
4. Capital movements comprise £300m aquity capital, £600m capital contibution and £400m of intra-group subordinated deb! attributed 1o LGPL, less
the repayment of £602m of intragroup subordinated debt previously attributed to the SRC.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.13 Analysis of ordinary shareholders’ equity

UK Intemational tite and  Invesiment Other Total
pensions  monage- operations’
totat ment'

As at 30 lune 2007 £m £m £fm £m £m Em
Analysed as:
IFRS basis shareholders’ equity 4,329 803 5,132 230 153 5515
Additional refained profit on an EEV basis 2,344 174 2,540 310 - 2,850
Ordinary shareholders’ equity on an EEV basis 6,475 997 7.672 540 153 8,345
Comprising:
Sharehgider net worth
- Free surplus 691 104 797 204
- Required capilal to cover solvancy margin 1.402 184 1,584 24
- Other required capital 1,797 . 1,797 -
valuve of in-force
- Volue of in-force business 2,924 75% 3,485 314
- Cost of copital - (141) {52) (193} (8)
As at 30 June 2004
Analysed as:
IFRS basis shareholders’ equity 2.591 713 3,304 2té 732 4,252
Additional retained profit on an EEV basis 2,528 134 2,664 250 - 2,914
Ordinary shareholders’ equily on an EEV basis 5,119 B4% 5.948 444 732 7.166
Comprising: )
Shareholder net worth !
- Free surplus - 96 94 198
- Required capital to cover saivency margin 134 152 841 18
- Other required capital 1.025 - - 1.025 .
value of in-force
- Volue of in-force business 3.415 656 4,071 254
- Cost of capital {10} {35) {65) {4}
As at 31 December 2006
Analysad qs;
IFRS basis shareholders’ equity 4,213 731 4,944 194 287 5,425
Additional retained profit on an EEV basis 2,043 182 2.225 281 - 2.506
Ordinary shareholders’ equity on an EEV basis 6,256 13 7149 475 287 7.83
Comprising:
Sharenolder net worth
- Free surplus 652 110 742 174
- Required capital fo cover solvency margin 1,362 151 1.513 18
- Other required capital 1.814 - 1.814 -
Value of in-force
- Value of in-force business 2,572 703 3,275 286
- Cost of capital {144) {51) 195} [5)

Free surplus is the market value of any capital and surplus allocated to. but not required to support, the in-force covered business at the

valualion date,

Total required capital includes any amount of assets attibuted to the covered business, over and above that required to back
liabilities, where distrilbution to shareholders is restricted.

1. Investment manogement comprises managed pension funds and is included in the tofal Investment management sharehclders’ equity ot £471m

{H) 0&: £564m, FY 04: £592m).

2. Other Invesiment managemen! businesses included on an IFRS basis of £131m [H] 04: £98m, FY 04: £117m) are inchided in other operations,

2007 Inferm Results

33




LA AR AT R TR A A A Al T AT A

Notes to the Financial Statements
3.14 Segmental analysis of shareholders’ equity

Covered Other Total Covered Oiher Total
business businets business business
EEV basls [FRS basls EEV basis FRS basis
At 30.0607 A 30.08.07 AF30.0607 A10.0606 At0.0606 AtI.0606
£€m £m £m £m £m £m
Uk b 6,675 . 4,675 5119 - 519
Society shareholder capital {excluding LGPLY . 501 501 - 2,042 2.042
8,875 501 7174 5119 2,042 7161
Embedded value of international fife ond pensions business
- ysal 595 - 595 537 - 537
- Netheronds 238 - 2348 197 - 197
-FTOF\CEJ 146 - 166 115 - 15
7.672 501 8,173 5,968 2,042 8,010
Investment management 540 3 &7 466 98 564
8212 432 8.844 6,434 2,140 8.574
General insurance - 138 136 - 164 164
Corporate funds* - (415} {615} - {1,572) {1.572)
I —_— _—
8.212 153 8,345 6,434 732 7.166
Covered Other Totat
business business
EEV basis IFRS basis
At 31,1206 At31.12046 At31.1206
£m £m im
ux’ 6,256 - 6.256
Soclety shareholder capital [excluding LGPL)? - 1,307 1,307
6,256 1.307 7.563
Embedded value of infernational life and pensions business
- USA 552 - 552
- Netherdands 228 - 228
- France 133 - 133
7.169 1,307 8,476
Investment management 475 117 592
7.644 1,424 9.068
General insurance - 169 1469
Corporate funds* - {1.306) {1.304)
7.644 287 793
Further analysis of the covered business is included in nofe 3.12.
full year
30.08.07 30.04.06 31.12.06
£m £m £m
Movement
At 1 January 7.931 6,970 6,970
Totat recognized income and axpense 445 43% 1,337
Issve of ordinary share capital 3 12 15
Nat movements in employee share schemes and treasury shares N {4) [5)
Dividend distribulions to ordinary equity holders of the Company during the period (2438) {234} {349}
Other reserve movements including pension deficit 23 13 %)
Fair value loss after tax on reclassification of subordinated bomowings as debt - {28) {28)
Al 30 June / 31 December 8,345 7.166 7.931

1. A1 30 June 2004, Legal & General Group P (Group Pke) hed lent £502m of subordinated debt 1o 1he SRC, In H2 06, this debi was repaid, then re-len)
1o Society shareholder capital, and £400m ol this was lent to LGPL on similar terrs. As parl of ongoing capital restructuring work. Society repaid the

subordinated debt to Group Plc in H1 07, The £400m lent to LGPL remains in place.

2. Represents surplus copital held outside Society's LTF, excluding LGFL sharehalder capital, which is regorded as either required capitot of free surplus

held within the covered business.

3. Capital movements comprise £46m [$90rm} of copitolinjectedinto the USA operation and £27m (€40m) injected into the French operalion,

4. Corporate funds includes investments, subordinated borowings and senior borowings.
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3.15 Reconciliation of shareholder net worth

UK Iite and Tolal UK life and Total UK fife andd Total
penslons pensions pensions
Al 30,0807 A130.0407 At300606 41300608 ATINI206 A131.5206
Restated
£m £tm im £m £m Em
SNwW of long term operations {IFRS basis) 3,285 5,362 2,591 3.520 3.263 5,138
Other assets {IFRS bosis} 1,044 153 - ) 732 950 287
Shareholders’ equity on the IFRS basis 4,329 5,515 2,591 4,252 4,213 5,425
Purchosed interests in iong term business ' ) (8} {24) %) (2%} {7) [25)
Sub-fund 326 326 292 292 313 313
Defered acaquisition costs/defered income liakibties . (127} (703) 1360} {927) {115) {677)
Defered fax ' . {442) (440) |1850) {686) {693) {520)
Other? . . 10 (1) 50 8 117 54
Shareholder net worth on the EEV basls 3.8%0 4,543 1.714 2910 31.828 4,570
Represented by: .
SNW of long term operations (EEV basis) - 2,577 4,410 1,714 2,178 2,548 4,283
LGPL sharehoider capitat (EEV basis} 1.313 - - - 1,280 -
Other ossets [IFRS basis) - 153 - 732 - 287

1. Deferad 1ax represents all tax which is expected to be paid under current legislation, inciuding tax which would arise if shoreholders' assets were

distibuted.
2. Other relates primarily to the dillerent treatment of stering reserves, other long term reserves and the non profit result ol LGPL under EEV compared

with IFRS.

3.14 Corporate restructure
On 31 December 2006, the non-inked nan profit pensions and annuity business of Society was ceded to a new, whally owned,
reinsurance company, LGPL. Full detdils of the restructuring are included in the 2006 Annual Repart and Accounts.

2007 Interim Results 35



curopean cmbeqaded vaiue
Notes to the Financial Statements

3.17  Assumptions

UK assumplions

The assumed future pre-tax returns on fixed interest and RPI linked securities are set by reference to redemption yields ovailable in
the market at the end of the reporting period.

For annuities, separate retuens are calculated for business sold betore or after December 2006. This reflecis a change in investment
policy applicable to the 2007 business which has the aim of increasing the expected return whilst not increasing the levet of asset
risk compared with the historic policy. This has been achieved through improved investment efficiency and increased diversification
through use of odditional asset classes. The calculated return takes occount of derivatives and other credit instruments in the
investment portfolio.

Where interest rate swaps are used o reduce risk, it is assumed that these swaps will be sold before expiry and the proceeds
reinvested in corporate bonds with a redemption yield 0.40% p.a. greater than the swap rate at that time.

The returns on fixed and index-linked securities are catculated net of an allowance for default risk which takes account of the
oulstanding term of the securities. The allowances for defoult risk ore set separately for the asset porifolios supporting fixed and
index-inked securities, and average 0.12% p.a. and 0.07% p.a. respectively across the portfolios as a whole {0.15% p.o. ond 0.10%
p.a. af 31.12.2006).

Economic assumptions

30.06.07 30.06.04 31.12.06 31.12.05
% p.a. % p.Q. % p.a. % p.Q.
Equity risk premium 3.0 3.0 30 3.0
Property risk premium 2.0 20 2.0 20
Investment return
- Gilts:
- Fixed inferest 51 4.5 4.6 4.1
- RPI linked ' 5.6 47 4.7 4.2
- Non gilts:
- Fixed interest 546-60 49-53 49-53 44-48
- RPI linked 5.3~-59 47-52 4.6-5.1 42-44
- Equities 8.1 7.6 7.6 7.1
- Property 7.1 6.6 6.6 6.1
Risk margin ' 3.0 30 30 3.0
Risk discount rate (net of tax) 8.1 7.6 7.6 71’
inflation
- Expenses/earnings 4.5 4.1 4.2 a9
- Indexation 35 3.1 3.2 29

The assumed returns on non gilt securities are net of an ollowance for default risk of 0.2% p.a. {2006: 0.2%), other than for
certain government-supported securities where no such allowance is made.

UK life and pensions

i The value of the Sub-fund is the discounied value of total projected investment returns over its lifetime.

ii. Assets are valued at market vaolue.

iii. Future bonus rates have been set at levels which would fully utilise the assets supporting the policyholders’ porlion of the
with-profits business. The proportion of profits derived from with-profits business allocated to shareholders has been assumed

to be 10% throughout.

iv. The value of in-force business reflects the cost, including odministration expenses, of providing for benefit enhancement or
compensation in relgfion to certain products.
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European Embedded Value
Notes to the Financial Statements

3.17

vi.

vil.

Assumptions {continved)

Other aciuarial assumptions have been set at levels commensurate with recent operating experience, including those for
moeriality, morbidity, persistency and maintenance expenses {excluding the development costs referred to below). These
are reviewed annually. An allowance is made for future improvements in annuitant morality based on experience and
exiernally published data. Male annuitant mortality is assumed to improve in accordance with CMI Working Paper 1,
projection MC for future experience with @ minimum annual improvement of 0.4%, and the average of projections MC and
LC for statutory reserving with @ minimum annual improvement of 0.8%. Fernate annuitant mortality is assumed 1o improve in
accordance with the MC projection from CMI Working Paper 1 for statutory reserving and at 70% of this rate for future
experience, with the same underpinning minima as for males.

£400m of subordinated debt attributed to Legal & General Pensions Limited (LGPL) in 2006 has been included ot face value,
The estimated market value wos £374m ot 30 June 2007.

Development costs relate to enhanced finoncial reporting and strategic systems.

UK managed pension funds

viii.

All contracts are assumed to lapse over a 10 year pericd. Fees are projected on a basis which reflects cumeni charges or, if
less, onticipated charges. New business consists of monies received from new clients and incremental receipts from existing
clients, and excludes the roll-up of the investiment returns. Development costs relate to strategic systems.

international
ix, Key assumptions:
30.06.07 30.06.06 31.12.06 31.12.05
% p.a. % p.a. % p.a. % p.Q.
USA
Reinvestment rate ' 58 5.9 5.4 51
Risk margin 3.0 30 a0 30
Risk discount rate (net of tax) 8.1 8.2 78 7.4
Europe
Government bond return 4.4 4.1 4.0 33
Risk margin 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Risk discount rate [net of fax) 7.6 7.1 7.0 6.3

Tax

Xl

Other actuarial assumptions have been set at levels commensurate with recent operating experiénce. including those for
mortality, morbidity, persistency and maintenance expenses,

EEV results are computed on on ofter tax basis and are grossed up by notional attribuied tax for presentation in the income
statement. The tax rate used for grossing up is the corporate tax rate in the temitory concemed which for the UK was 28%
{H) 0é: 30%: FY 06: 30%).

Stochostic calculations

xii,

The time value of options and guarantees is colculated using economic and non-economic assurmptions consistent with
those used for the deterministic embedded value calculations.

This section describes the models used to generate fulure investment simulations, and gives some sample siatistics for the
simulations used. A single mode! has been used for UK and international business, with different economic assumptions for
each temiory.

Govemment nominal interest rates are generoted using a LIBOR Money Market Model projecting full vield curves at annual
intervals. The mode! provides G good fit fo the initial yiekd curve,

The total annual returns on equities and property are calcukated as the return on 1 year bonds plus an excess return. The
excess return is assumed o have a legnormal distribution. Corporate bonds are modelled separately by credit rating using
stochastic credit spreads over the risk-free rates, transition matrices and default recavery rates. The real yield curve model
assumes that the real short rate follows a meanreverting process subject to two normally distributed random shocks.

Asset classes

The significant asset classes are for:

- UK with-profits business — equities, property and fixed rate bonds of various durations;
- UK annuity business - fixed rate and index-linked bonds of various durations; and

- International business - fixed rate bonds of various durations.
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Appendaices

Evropean Embedded Value Methodology (continued)

Summary siatistics

The following table sets out means and standard deviations (StDev} of fulure returns as at 30 June 2007 for the most
significant asset closses. Comelations between asset classes have been set based on an internal assessment of historical
data. o

10-yeor return 20-year return

Mean? SiDev? Mean! SiDev?
UK Business (Sterling)
Government bonds 5.6% 3.1% 5.3% 3.3%
Corporate bonds 6.1% 3.3% 59% 3.5%
Properly {excess returns) 20% 14.6% 2.0% 15.0%
Equities {excess returns) 3.1% 202% - 3.0% . 19.9%
Europeon Business (Euro)
Long Government bonds? 4.8% 5.7% 5.2% 5.8%
$hort Government bonds* 48% 4.4% 5.2% 8.5%
US Business {(US Dollar)
Long Government bonds? 51% 5.8% 5.5%, 6.0%

1. Other than for equities and property, means are calculated as the excess of i year bond asset retum means plus | year bond means.

Means for the equities ond property excess returns are calculated as the excess of 1 year bond assef return means. Each mean is derved

by caolculating the accumulated value of a unil asset invested to lime n years for each simulafion, averaging the resultant values across
all simutations, then calcutaling the equivalent annual return required 1o give this average accumulation (by taking the nth root of the
average accumukition and deducting 1).

2. Slandard deviations are caolculoted by accumulating o unit investment for n years in each simulation, taking the natural logaorithm of the
result, calculating the varionce of this statistic, dividing by n and taking the square root. Equilies and property values use excess returns,
The results are comparable to implied volatiities quoted in investmen! moarkets.

3. Llong term bonds are defined 1o be 10-yeor par-coupon bonds,
4, Shorl term bonds are detined 1o be | year duration bonds.

Risk discount rate

The risk discount rate is scenario-dependent within the stochastic projection. It is calcutated by applying the deterministic risk

margin to the risk free rate in each stochastic projection.

Sensitivity calculations

In accordance with the dispensation within the CFQ guidelines, a full sensitivity analysis is only provided annually.
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Operating profit income statement
Six months ended 30 June 2007

Fullyear
30.06.07 30.0606 30204
Notes fm m £m
From continving operations
Life and pensions 401 290 252 592
Investiment manogement ) 402 73 65 133
General insurgnce 403 {38) 2 9
Other operational income 404 7 15 18
Operating profit 342 334 752
Yarigtion from longer term investment retum 405 21 7 63
Contribution from UK nen profit business 406 ne - 39 1,136
Property income ottributable to minority interests 17 21 &7
Profit from continuing operations before tax athributable to equity holders 499 401 2.018
Tax attributable to equity holders 407 {170) [124) (387}
Profit from ordinary aclivities after fax 329 277 1.631%
Protit offributable to minority interests 4.14 (7 [21) {67)
Profit aftributable to equity holders ’ 32 256 1.564
P =] P
Earnings per shore 408
Based on operating profit from continuing operations atter tax otirbutoble to
equity holders 3.87 .69 8.33
Based on profit attibutable to equity holders of the Company 4.80 95 2412
Dilvted eamings per share 4.08
Based on operating profit from continuing operafions afier tax atiributable to
equity holders 1.84 3.67 8.27
Based on profit attibuiable to equity holders of the Company 477 393 23.95

This supplementary operating profit information provides turther analysis of the results reported under IFRS and we believe gives
shareholders a better understanding of the underlying performance of the busness,

For UK life and pensions business, operating profitin a full year represents:

+ the distibution of profit relating to non profit and shareholder net worth, grossed up for tax. The current distibulion comprises:
- 7% of the embedded value of the shareholder retained capital [SRC) and Sub-fund (shareholder net worth — SNW} adjusted to

remove the effect of the contingent lean (between SRC and LGPL} and the SNW of LGPL; and
- 5% of the embedded value of the non profit business adjusted to remove the effect of the contingent loan between SRC and
LGPL:
« * the shareholders’ share of the with-profits surplus recognised in the year, grossed up for tox;
+ the subordinated debt interest on the intro-group subordinated debt included within the SRC, unfilit was repaid in December 2004,

An analysis of the distribution of profit relating o non profit and SNW is included in Note 5.04{a).
Operating profitincludes a longer term investment return on sharehelders', General insuraonce and Netherdands' funds held oulside a

long term fund. it excludes investment varances and the contribution from UK non profit business. The income statement compiises
returns to shareholders and excludes policyholders’ returns.
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Consolidated income statement
Six months ended 30 June 2007

Full year
30.06.07 30.06.06 3112046
Notes £m £m £m
Revenve :
Gross written premiums 409 2,28% 2,053 4,286
Outward reinsurance pramiurms (255) {247) {518}
Net change in provision for uneamed premiums (5} (2} 7
Net premiums earned 2,029 1,804 3.775
Fees from fund monagemeni and investment contracts N3 243 535
Investment return 4,588 2,730 16,572
Operational income 28 23 84
Total revenuve 8,958 4,805 20.966
Expenses
Clkaims and chonge in insurance liabilities 1.409 1,747 1,938
Reinsurance recoveres (232) {514} 1,123
Net claoims and change in insurance liabifities 1177 1.203 3,061
Change in provisicns for investment contract liabilities 6,325 2,511 13.878
Acquisition costs 344 232 987
Finance costs 80 70 153
Other expenses 43 336 674
Transfers to unallocated divisible surpius 74 60 284
Total expenses 8,433 4,412 19,037
Profit before income lax 525 393 1.929
income jox atinbutable to policyholder returns (28) 8 89
Profit from continving operations before Income tax attributable to equity holders 459 401 2.018
Totalincome tax expense (196) {116} {298}
Income tax gttibutable 1o policyholder retums 24 {8) {89)
Income ioax attibutable 1o equity holders (170) (124} {387}
Profit from ordinary activities after income tax a2y 277 1,631
Attributable to:
Minaority interests 17 21 &7
Equity holders of the Company 312 254 1,564
Dividend distributions to equity holders of the Company dwing the penod 2438 236 349
Dividend distributions fo equity holders of the Compoany proposed after the period end 122 13 248
P 2] i
Earnings per share
Based on profit kom continuing operations after income lox altributable to equily holders 4.80 395 24.12
Diluted earnings per share
Based on profit from continuing operations ofter income tax atinbutable to equity holders 4.77 3.93 23.95
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 30 June 2007

"t A130.0607 A1300606 At31.1206
Notes £m £m im
Assets
Investment in associates 16 16 14
Plont and eguipment 78 34 43
Investmen! property 4,992 6,625 6,852
Financicl investments 413 221,840 182,428 201,430
Reinsurers' share of contratt liabilities 1,642 3.194 1.481
Purchosed interest in long term businesses 22 2% 23
Deferred acquisition costs | 1,587 1,542 1,456
Income tax recoverabple - é 12
Other assets 2,436 2,086 1,622
Cuash and cash equivalents 6,435 3,981 4,930
Total assets 241,048 199,941 217,845
Equity
Share capital 143 163 163
Share premium account 926 920 923
Treasury shares (42) (44) {45}
Other reserves 44 22 49
Retained eamings 4,424 3.1%1 4,335
Capital and reserves atiributable to equity holders of the Company 4.12 55815 4,252 5,425
Minarity interests 4.14 454 318 414
Total equity 415 5971 4,570 5.839
tlablilities
Subordinated borrowings 4.13 1.371 813 818
Parlicipating insurance contracts 12,251 12,727 12,660
Participating investment contracts 7.393 7.438 7,501
Unallocoted divisible surplus 2,277 1,982 2,178
value of in-force non-participoting contracts (413) {401) {371}
Participating contract liabilities 21,508 21,746 21,948
Non-participating insurance contracts 21,330 23.43% 21.602
Non-participating investment contracts 184,441 143,687 162,016
Non-participating contract liabilities 2057 167,126 183.618
Senior bormrowings 413 1.332 1,682 1.607
Provisions 485 484 568
Defered income liabilities 481 373 422
Defemred tax liabilities 595 441 472
Income tox iobilifies 51 87 106
Other liabilities 2,652 1,869 1,663
Net aosset value attributcble to unit holders 871 730 804
Total liabilities 235,097 195,371 212,026
241,048 199,941 217,865

Tolal equity and liabililies
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Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
Six months ended 30 June 2007

Full year
30.06.07 30.06.06 311206
£m £m £m
Fair value losses on cash flow hedges - (3 [3)
Exchange differences on transiation of overseos operations (L)) 26) {35)
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes 82 ) 64 3
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes transferred to unallocated divisible surplus (25} |28) {1}
Net change in financial investments designoted as available-for-sale (4} 112) 7
. o S . e —— .
Income / {expense) recognised directly in equily, net of tax 32 (5} {29)
Profit from ordinory activities after income tax 329 277 1,631
Total recognised income and expense 351 272 1,602
Attibutable to:
Minority interests 17 21 &7
~ 344 251 1,535

Equity holders of ihe Company
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the six months ended 30 June 2007

Fultyear
30.04.07 30.06.06 311206
£m £m £fm
Profil from ordinary oclivities afler income tax 32y 277 1,631
Adjustments for non cash movements in net profit for the period
Redlised and unrealised [gains)/losses on financial investments and investment properties (2,848) 941 {9,505}
Investment income ’ (3.937) {3.525) [6.630)
Interest expense 80 70 153
Income iax payable 194 F1é 298
Other adjustrmenis 21 7 46
Net (Increase)/decrease in operational assets
Investments designated as held for trading or tair value through profit or loss (5.372) {7.679) (9.599)
investments designoted as available-for-sate 29 {51} (251}
Other assets (821} {1.382) 557
Net increase/(decrease) in operational llabilities
Insurance confracts . (441} {86) {1.893)
Tramsfer to unallocatled divisible surplus L 88 285
Investment conracts 9,559 7.834 §9.527
Value of in-force non-participating confracts (22) [22) {12)
Other iabilities 25 345 594
Cash used in operating aclivities {2,004) [3.045} {4,797}
Interest paid {71) {73} [148)
Interest received 1,946 1,653 3.478
Income tax paid (141) 184} {315)
Dividends received 1,756 1.843 3.095
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,484 194 L1315
Cash flows from Investing activilies
Net acquisition of plant and equipment (43) (9) {24)
Net proceeds from disposal of Ventures' investiments - - 10
Non-financial investiments purchased - {2} {3}
Net cash flows from investing activities [43) (4] {17}
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend distributions to equity holders of the Company during the year (248) {236) {349)
Proceeds from issue of share capital 3 12 15
Purchase of freasury shares {3) #1 {11}
Proceeds from bomowings 1.627 347 1.062
Repayment of borrowings {1.288) {322} {1051}
Net cash fiows trom financing octivities kA {188) {334)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,514 15) 964
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents () {15) (35)
Cash and cash equivalents at t January 4,930 4,001 4,000
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June / 31 December 6,435 3981 4.930

The Group's consolidated cash flow stalement includes all cash and cash equivalent flows. including those relating 1o the UK long

term funds.
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Notes to the Financlal Statements
4.01 LHe and pensions operating profit

Full year
30.04.07 30.08.048 L1204
Notes £m £m im
Distribution relating to non profil and SNwW 5.04(0) 1%¢ 157 3588
Subgerdinated debt interest - 13 34
- . - S J——— - - — -
Nan profit business 199 175 422
with-profits business 50 40 25
UK 249 215 517
USA 32 33 58
Methenands 4 3) 7
France 5 7 10
290 252 592
4.02 Investment management operating profit
Full year
30.04.07 30.06.06 1206
£m £m £m
Manoged pension funds 51 45 P4
ventures - 2 4
Property 5 4
Retail investments é 5 11
Otherincome’ n 9 16
73 65 133

1.0ther income in HY 07 includes £4m of profits arising from market referenced foes charged lor the provision of investmen! management services to

business reinsured o LGPL.
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Notes to the Financlal Statements

4.03 General insurance operating profit, underwriting result and combined operating ratios
{a) Operating profit

Full year
30.06.07 30.04.06 31204
£m £m £m
Household' (52} 2 {9}
Other business® 14 . 18
(38) 2 ?
1. Household business in 2007 includes o loss of £40m as o resull of flood related cloims in June 2007,
2. Cther business in 2007 includes £6m profil following the withdrowal from the healthcare business in the first quarter.
{b} Underwriting result
Full year
30.05.07 30.06.06 31.12.06
N £m £m £m
Household (5%) 3 (21)
Other business . 1 {3) 13
{48) (&) (8)
{c) Combined operating ratio
Full year
30.08.07 30.06.04 31.12.06
% %
Heousehold 153 104 LR R
Other business' &8 10 8¢
. 134 106 105
1, Other business combined ratic in 2007 includes the £4m profil on the withdrawal from the healthcare business in the first quanter.
The combined operating rafio is:
Netincumed claims  Expenses + Net commission 100
+
Net eamned premiums Net written premiums
4.04 Other operational income
Fullyeor
30.06.07 30.06.06 311206
£m £m £m
Shareholders’ other income
Invesiment return on ordinary shareholders’ equity 0 59 139
Interest expense ' (55) {48} {104)
35 2] 33
Other operations' - W 2)
Unallocated comorate and development expenses 118) {5) {13}
17 15 18

1. Principally the regulated mortgaege network and Cofunds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
4.05 Variation from longer term investment retumn

Full yeor

30.06.07 300606 311206

£m Em £m

Netherlands . . (12) (20) (18)
Investment management m - {1}
General insurance . 4] (1 (7]
Other operational income 43 28 - 89
21 7 63

Investment return is allocated to operating profit by reference 1o a longer term rate of investrment return for the respective invesied
funds. The difference between the acmount allocated to operating profit and aciual investment refurn is the variation from longer
term invesiment return analysed above.

4.06 Contribution from UK non profit business

Full year
30.06.07 30.06.06 31.12.06
Notes £m £€m £m
Investment income sz 45 75
Interest expense and charges (2) (1} {3)
Redlised invesiment gains 14 ?5 215
Unrealised investment (losses}/gains .. [¢3) {25) 16
Investment return on SRC 145 104 303
Net capital released from non profit business 502 153 110 1.255
Distribution of aperating profit from non profit business {199) [175) {422}
Contribution rom UK non profit business before tax ) 1ne 39 1,136
4.07 Analysis of tax ’ .
- Profit -
Profit Profit betore tax Tax
belore tax Tax belore tax Tax Fultyear Full year
30.04.67 30.06.07 3004.06 A0.06.06 31.12.06 311206
£m £m im £m £m £m
From confinving operations .
UK lite and pensions 249 (75) 215 (65} 517 {154}
International life and pensions 41 {13} 37 [14) 75 {24}
290 (88) 252 (79} 592 {178]
invesiment manogement 73 (23) 45 [9) 133 {40)
General insurance (38) 12 2 - 9 {2)
Other operafional income 17 8 15 3 18 8
Operating profit 342 [CA)] 334 {95) 752 {212)
Variation from longer term investment retum 21 {%) 7 4 63 [
Conkibution from UK non profit business 19 (70) 39 {33) 1,138 {164)
Property income atiributable to minonty interests 17 - 21 - 67 -
Proftt from continuing operations betore tax / Tax a9y nrzo 401 (124) 2018 {387)

Only the element of total tax attribuiable to equity holders’ profit is shown explicitly in the analysis above; the fax atiibulable to
pokcyholder returns is included within expenses in the operating profitincome statement, '

in accordance with the Group's pokcy for atiibuting 1ax fo equity holders and policyholders, the IFRS profit before equity holder tax
from the net copital released from UK non profit business is determined by grossing up after tax amounts at the standard rate of UK
corporation fox {30%). In thae period o 30 June 2007, there was no current or deferred tax chorge on these profits.

No deferred fax is provided at the incremental rate on the undeclored surplus in the Society LTF represented by the SRC on the
grounds that, ol the balance sheet date. no obligafion to make a declarafion of surplus aclually exists and there is no expectation
that such a declaration will occur. The maxirnum aomount of incremental tax which would crystallise on such a declorotion of surplus
is estimaoted to be £295m (H1 04: £475m; FY 0é: £717m). The reduction is due to new tax legisiotion in the Finance Act 2007. This would
charge the additional toxable profit arising from a release of SRC, over the existing tax base, at the cument corporation tax rate
[30%). but would permit the excess to be carmed forward for relief in future years at the policyholders’ rate (20%).
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Notes to the Financlal Statements
408 Earnings per share
{(a) Earnings per share

Profi} Tax Profit Eamings Profit Tax Profit Eomings
before tax chorge attertax  pershare beforetiox  [charge)/ aftertax  per share
credi .
30.05.07 30.06.07 20.05.07 0.06.07 30.06.04 30.06.06 30.06.06 30.06.04
£m £m £m P £&m £m £&m P
Operating profit from centinving operations 342 (71) 251 gz 334 (95} 239 3.69
Varation from longer term invesiment retum rdl (?) 12 0.18 7 4 1 0.17
Contribution from UK nen profil business 1ne (70) 49 0.75 39 (33} & 0.07
£arnings per share based on profit
attributable lo equity holders 482 (170) 32 4.80 380 {124} 256 3.95
Profit Tox Profit Earnings
before tox chorge ofler tax pet share
Full year Fultyear Fullyear Full year
311206 311206 31206 311206
£m £m £m P
Operating profit from continving operations 752 {212) 540 8.33
Varation from longer term investment refurn 63 {11} 52 0.80
Contribution from UK nen profit business 1,136 {164} 972 14.99
Earnings per share based on profit
attributable to equity holdars 1.931 {387) 1,564 2432
(b} Diluted earnings per share
0] Based on operating proft kom continving operations after tax
Profit Number Earnings Profit Number Earrings
aftertax  ofshares'  per share attertox  of shares'  per share
30.06.07 30.04.07 30.06.07 30.06.06 30.06.06 30.04.06
£m m P £m m P
Operaling profit from continuing operations atter fax 251 5,493 3.87 239 6,478 3.49
Net shares under oplions allocable for no further consideration - 7 (0.03) - 41 [0.02)
Convertible bonds outstanding - - - 12 285 .
Diluted earnings per share 251 4.530 334 251 4,804 3467
Profit Number Eornings
afer tax  of shares’  per share
Full year Full yexar Fubyear
311206 31206 31208
m m B
Operating profit rom continuing operations atter tax 540 4,483 8.33
Net shares under options allocable for no further consideration - 45 [0.08}
Converiible bonds ouistanding - - -
Diluted eaarnings per share 540 6,529 8.27
(i) Based on profit athibutable to equity holders of the Company
Profit Number Eamings Profis Number Eamings
atertax  of shares’  pershare cftertox  ofshares’  pershare
30.05.07 30.06.07 30.06.07 W.06.06 30.06.06 30.06.06
£m m P £m m P
Profit atibutable to equity holders of the Company N2 6493 4.80 256 6.478 395
Net shares under oplions allocable for no further consideration - 37 (0.03) - 41 [0.02)
Converlible bonds outstanding . - - 12 285 -
Diluted ecrnings per share 312 6,530 477 248 6,804 393
Profit Number Eamings
afterfax  of shares'  per share
Full year Full year Full year
311204 31206 311206
£m m [}
Profit ottributable to equity holders of the Company 1,564 6,483 24,12
Net shares under oplions allocable for no further consideration - 44 {0.17)
Convertible bonds outstanding - - -
1,564 6,529 2395

Diluted earnings per share

The numiber of shares in issue at 30 June 2007 was 6,535,517,371 (H1 0&: 6,527,906,573; FY 046 6,532,261,941}.

1. Weighted average number of shares,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
4.09 Gross writen premiums .

Full year
30.06.07 30.06.06 31,1206
£m im £m
From continving cperations .
UK Iife and pensions parlicipating business 193 203 374
UK life and persions non-participating business 1.421 1,216 2,691
Total UK lite and pensions . 1,614 1,419 3.067
UsSA 16% 174 347
Netherands ) 143 147 266
France 205 152 283
Total file and pensions 2131 1,8‘52 3.963
General insyrance
Household 122 15 240
Other business 34 44 83
158 161 323

Total General Insurance

Tota) gross written premivms 2,289 2,053 4,286

4.10 Segmental analysls
The Group is organised inlo three main business segments:

- Long terrm business (includes insurance and investment business)

- Investment mancgement .

- General insuronce

Other operations comprise shoreholders' assets, regulated mortgage network, estate agencies and corporate expenses, none of
which constitule o separately reportable segment.

{n Income statement analysed by business segments

Long term  Investment General Other Ellmination Tolal
business monage- insvrance operafions of inter
ment segment
amounts
5lx months ended 30 fune 2007 £m £m Em £m £m £m
Totai revenue from continuing operations 3,234 5,443 149 242 (1o 8,958
Totat expenses from continuing operations 2,842 5,342 194 143 {110) 8,433
Profit from continuing operations after income tax 241 50 (33) E2] - 329
Inter segment revenue {14} (309 - (68) 110 -
Six months ended 30 June 2004
Total revenue from continuing operations 2,469 2,067 154 225 g 4,805
Total expenses from continuing operations 2,245 1,984 158 135 {110) 4,412
Profit from continuing operafions after income tax 151 45 (3) 84 - 277
Inter segment revenue - {34} - [78) Ho -
Full year ended 31 December 2004
Total revenue from continuing operations 8,355 12,013 315 526 (243) 20.966
Total expenses from continuing operations 6,802 11,849 314 315 (243) 19.037
Profit from continuing operotions after income tax 1,344 93 1 193 - 1.431
Inter segment revenue ' (26} {40) (2} (175) 243 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
4.10 Segmental analysis (confinuved)
{iiy Balance sheet analysed by business segments

Long term  Invesiment General Other Elimination Total
tusiness  manoge-  Inswrance  operations of Inter -
ment segment
amounts
As at 30 June 2007 £m £m £m £m fm £Em
Total assets 71,701 165,220 554 4,942 (1.549) 241,048
Toto! liabifities 48,228 164,445 418 3,555 {1,549) 235097
Total equity 3.473 775 136 1,387 - 5
As at 30 June 2004
Total assets ' 67,021 129,559 520 4,443 11.602}  199.94]
Total liabilities 64,713 128.8N 356 3.073 [1.602) 195371
Total equity 2,308 728 t64d 1,370 - 4,570
As at 31 December 2004
Totol assets 69,729 144,725 534 4,519 {1.642)  217.865
Total liabilities 66,053 144,000 365 3,250 {1.642) 212,026
Total equity 3.676 725 16% 1,269 - 5839
(ili) Revenue and assefs by geographic segments
UK USA Netherands france Elimination Totat
of inter
segment
amounts
30 June 2007 fm £m £m £m £m £m
Totol revenue from continuing operations 8414 143 173 207 () 8,958
Total assets ! 235,254 - 2,486 1,495 1,880 (47) 241048
30 June 2004
Totol revenue from continuing operations 4,410 157 116 122 - 4,805
Total assets 195,033 1,910 1,309 1,710 {21)  199.241
31 December 2006
Totol revenue from continuing operations 20,020 329 300 ne (2) 20968
Total assets 212,185 2,478 1.415 1,807 (20} 217.865

4.11 Financial investments

A1 300607 AP30.0606 A131.1208

£m £m £m
Equities 125,932 101,907 112,589
Unit trysts 5,147 3145 4,190
Debt securities 88,445 75.700 82,685
Accrued interest 1,187 970 1,079
Derivative assets n 44 77
Loans and receivables 858 639 810

221,850 182,428  201.430
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Notes to the Financial Statements
4.12 Segmental analysis of ordinary shareholders' equity

A130.08.07 At30.06.06 Al31.1206
£m £m £m
$RC' ' 3285 2591 3263
Society shareholder capital (excluding LGPLE . . 501 2.042 1,307
LGPL shareholder capital 1,044 - 950
Society shareholder ccpucﬂ“ 1,545 2,042 2,257
4830° 4, 633 5.520
Generadlinsuronce 134 164 169
Netherlands 93 83 97
Fronce’ n2 8 82
Total Society shurehoiders equliy 51N 4,954 5.868
usa? 598 556 552
Investment management ' 381 314 3
Corporate funds® (515) (1.572} {1.304)
Ordinary shoreholders equity 5515 4,252 5,425

1. At 30 June 2004, kegal & Generol Group Pic {Group Plc] had lent £602m of subordinoted debt ¢capital fo the SRC. In H2 06. the debt capital was repaid.

ihan re-len! to Society shareholder capital, £400m of this was lent to LGPL on simidor termns.

2. As part of ongoing capitol restructuring work, Society repaid the subordincted debt capital to Group Pic in HI 07, reducing Saciety sharehalder capital

by £502m. In oddition, a dividend of £400m was paid from Sociely to Corporote funds. The ameunt lant 1o LGPL remains in ploce.
3. Represents capitol held outside Society's Long Term Fund and LGPL sharehelder capital.
4, Capilal movements comprse £44m {$50m) of capital injected into the USA operalion and £2/m {€40m) |n1ecred intae the french operation,
5. Corporate funds include investments. subordinated borowings and senior borowings.

4.13 Analysis of borrowings

AY30.08.07 At300604 A131.1204
£m £m £m

Subordinated borrowings
6.385% Sterling perpetudl capito! securities 580 - -
5.875% Stering undaled subordinoted noles 428 429 429
4.0% Euro subordinated notes 2025 363 384 389
Total subordinated bormowings . 1371 813 818
Senlor bomowings .
2.75% Sterfing convertible bond 2006 - 518 -
Stering medium term notes 2031-2041 402 602 408
Euro commerciol paper 114 11 370
Bank loans 18 25 3
Non recourse finoncing
- US Dollar Triple X securtisation 2025 244 284 270
- US Dollar Triple X securitisation 2037 220 - 224
- Sterding property partnership loans 2011 14 140 130
Total senior borowings 1,332 1.682 1,607
Tolal borrowings 2,703 2.495 2,425
Total borowings (excluding non recourse finoncing) 2,105 2.06% 1.79%
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Notes to the Financlal Statements
4.13 Analysis of borrowings (continued)

Subordinated borrowings
For regulatory purposes the stering perpetual copilal securifies are treoted as innovative tier | capital, the sterling undoted
subordinated notes as upper tier Il copital and the Euro subordinated notes as lower tier It capital.

6.385% Sterling perpetual capital securities

In 2007, Legal & General Group Plc issued £400m of 4,.385% stering perpetual capilol secunifies, These secunifies are callable on 2
May 2017 and every three months thereafier. If not called. the coupon from 2 May 2017 will be reset o three month UBOR plus
1.93% per annum, Simultaneous with the issuonce, the fixed coupon waos swapped into six month LIBOR plus 0.94% per annum.

5.875% Sterling undated subordinated noles
These notes are callable on 1 April 2019 ond every five years thereafter, If not called, the coupon from 1 Aprl 2019 will be reset to
the prevailing five year benchmark gilt vield plus 2.33% per onnum.

4.0% Euro subordinated notes 2025
These notes are callable on 8 June 2015 and each yeor thereatter. If not colled. the coupon from 8 June 2015 will be resetfo a
tloatfing rate of interest based on prevaiing three month Eurbor plus 1.7% per annum. The proceeds were swapped into stering.

Non recourse financing

us Dollar Triple X securitisations

This non-recourse debt was issued by o subsidiary of Legal & General America Ing in the US capital markets to meet the Triple X
reserve requirements on the US term insurance business. They are secured on the cash flows related to this business.

Sterling property partnership koans 2011
These loans are secured on spedcific properties.

Convertible bond .
The convertible bond matured in 2004 and was redeemed at par without being converied into ordinary shares.

4.14 Minority Interests

Minority inlerests represent third party interests in property investmeni vehicles which are consclidated in the Group's resulis.

4.15 Total equity

Full year
30.08.07 30.06.06 311206
. £m &m im
At 1 January 5,839 4,934 4,934
Totol recognised income and expense 38 272 1.6402
Issue of ordinary share capitat 3 12 15
Net movements in employee share schemes and treasury shares " (4) (5)
Dividend distributions to equity holders of the Company during the perod (248) {236) {349)
Movements in minority interests including disposals 25 12 62
Reciassification of subordinated borowings from equity to debt . - {394) {394)
Fair value loss after fax on reclassification of subordinated borowings as debt - {28) {28)
At 30 June / 31 December 5% 4,570 5,839
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Notes to the Anhanclal Statemenis
4.16 Value of assets in the UK long term funds

B IAA AT AT

AL30.08.07 A1300406 At31.1206
£bn £on £bn
With-profits business 30.1 29.4 30.1°
Non profit business 28.1 243 26.6
Sub-fund 0.3 0.3 03
SRC 33 .. 24 .33
e m amamen ——— . —m - fe PO JEV i U,
61.8 56.4 60.3
4.17 Non-linked invested asset mix and investment return '
Investment] With-profits With-profits  With-profits  Non profit $RC Sub-lund s$sC LGPL|
return| asset share non par other exc. LGPL shareholder|
A} 30 June 2007 2007 % % b % % % % % %
Equities ¥ 50 5 {50) - 43 81 90 &7
Bonds (4} 28 81 127 99 3 - - 27
Property 4 19 -2 L] - 22 N T - -
Cash 3 3 12 22 1 12 4 10 4
100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100
Investment return (%) 4 (2) " 4 é & 5 4
Invested assets (Ebn) 181 24 1.8 15.0 24 0.3 0.3 1.3

All investment return percentages reflect average retumns for the period.
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Notes to the Financlal Siatements

4.18 Pension cost

The Legal & General Group UK Pension and assurance Fund and the Legal & General Group UK Senior Pension Scheme are defined
benefit pension arangements and account for ol UK and the majority of worldwide assets of, and contributions o, such
arrangements. At 30 June 2007, the combined atter tax deficit arising from these arangements {net of annuity obligations insured by
Society) haos been astimated at £75m [H1 0&: £79m; FY 04 £122m). These amounts have been recognised in the financial statements
with £45m chorged ogainst shareholder equity (H1 06: £49m; FY 04: £72r) and £30m against unallocated divisible surptus {HY 06:
£30m; FY 0é: £50m).

4.19 Contingent liabilities, guarantees and indemnities

Provision for the liabilities arising under confracts with policyholders is based on certain assumpfions. The variance of actual
experience from that assumed may result in such kabilifies differing from the provisions made for them. Liabilities may also arise in
respect of claims relating to the interpretation of such contracts, or the circumstances in which policyholders have entered into
them (together in this poragraph “licbiliies’). The extent of such liabilities is influenced by a number of factors including the aclions
and requirements of the FSA, by ombudsman rulings, by industry compensotion schemes and by court judgements. The continuing
general profile and emphasis being given by the FSA and other bodies to ihe suilabifity of the past sales of endowment policies in
the context of some morigage fransactions has led to the conlinuing receipt of claims from holders of endowmeni policies.

Varous Group companies receive claims ond become involved in actual or threalened litigotion ond regulatory issues from time o
time, Provision for liobilifies continues to be made and is regularly reviewed. However, H is not possible to predict, with certainty, the
extent and the timing of the finoncial impact to which these claims, lifigation or issues may give rise. The relevant members of the
Group nevertheless consider that eoch makes prudent provision, as and when circumstances calling for such provision become
clear, and that each has adequate caopital and reserves to meel oll reasonably foreseeable eventualities.

In 1975 the Society was required by the Institute of London Underwriters {ILU) to execute the ILU form of guarantee in respect of
policies issued through the ILU's Policy Signing Office on behalf of NRG Victory Reinsurance Company Ltd (Victory), @ company
which was then a subsidiary of the Society. In 1990, Nedetlandse Reassurantie Groep Holding NV {the assets and liabitities of which
have since been assumed by Nederondse Reassuraontie Groep NV under a statutory merger in the Nethedands) acguired Viciory
and provided an indemnity to the Society against any liability the Society may have as a result of the ILU's requirement, and the ILU
agreed that its requirement of the Sodiety would not apply o policies writen or renewed after the acquisition. Whether the Society
has any liability os a result of the ILU's requirement and. if s, the amount of its potential ability is uncertain. The Society has made
no payment or provision in respect of this matier,

Group companies have given indemnities and guarantees, including interest rate guarantees, as a normal part of their operoting
activitias or in relation to capital market fransoctions,

420 Forelgn exchange rates

Period end exchange rates AY30.04.07  AY3004.06 AN31205
United States Dollar 2.0 1.85 1.96
Euro 1.4¢ 1.45 1.48

01.01.07- 01.01.06- 01.01.06

Average exchange rates 30.06.07 30.06.06 311208
United States Doflar 197 1.7% 1.84
Euro 1.48 1.46 1.47

4.2% Corporate reshructure

On 31 December 2004, the non-Enked non profit pensions and annuity business of Society was ceded fo a new, wholly owned,
reinsurgnce company, LGPL. Full detaik of the restructuring are included in the 2006 Annual Report and Accounts.
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5.01 Regulatory capital resources

Insurance Groups Direclive

{a)

The Group is required to measure and maonitor its copital resources on a regulatory basis and to comply with the minimum capital
requirements of regulators in each territory in which it operates. At Group level, Legal & General must comply with the requirements of
the Insurance Groups Direcfive (IGD). Thisis o very prudent measure of capital resources as it excludes any amount of surplus capital
within a long term fund [£3.2bn for Society at 30 June 2007). The table below shows the estimated total Group capital resources,

Group cdpitalresources requirement and the surplus.

At30.06.07 Al 3004606 AL211204
£bn £bn £bn
Core tier | 5.8 54 59
Innovative tier | 0.4 - -
Upper tier I 0.4 0.4 0.4
Lower tier Il 0.4 0.4 0.4
Deductions 0.1) {0.1) (0.4}
Group capital resources 7.1 6.1 X
Group capital resources requirement 4.5 33 4.6
Insurance Groups Directive surplus 2.4 23 20
A segmental analysis is given below,
AP30.06.07 A130.0606 A131.1206
£bn ibn fon
Saciety long term fund 3.8 3.4 37
Society shoreholder capital 0.5 20 1.3
L&G Pensions 1.5 - 1.4
186G Insurance 0.1 0.t o1
L&G France 0.1 0.1 0.1
LAG Nethertands 0.1 a1 0.1
L&G America 0.} 0.1 0.1
investment management . 03 0.3 03
Other 1.5 1.1 0.5
Innovative tier | 0.6 - -
Tier It 0.8 08 08
Deb! (2.1) 2.1) (1.8)
Group capital resources 7.1 6.1 6.4
Society kong term fund 3.4 3.4 37
L&G Pensions 0.4 - 0.6
Other 0.2 0.2 0.3
Group caplal resources requirement 45 3.8 4.6
A reconciliation of the Group capital resources on an IGD basis 1o the capital and reserves attibutabile to the equity holders of the
Company on an IFRS basis is given below.
AY30.0607 A1300606 A131.12.04
£bn Ebn £bn
Capital gnd reserves atiibutable to equity holders on an IFRS basis 55 4.3 5.4
Innovative tier | 0.4 - -
Tier Il 0.8 0.8 08
Additional capital available from Sociaty 0.7 b5 0.8
Adjustment 1o reflect regulatory value of LAG America {0.5) {0.5) {0.4)
) 71 6.1 8.6

Group capital resources
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5.01 Regulatory capital resources (continued)

(b} Sociely capHal surplus
Society is required to measure and monitor its capital resources on a regulatory basis.

At 30.06.07 At30.0607 A130.0606 A130.0606 AF31.1206 At3)1.1206

Long term General  Long term General  Long term General
business  insurance business  insurance business  inswronce
£bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn
Tier | .. 8.v 0.1 7.5 0.1 8.7 0.1
Upper fier ' . - - 0.6 - 03 -
Lower tier II' . - - - 03 .
Avallable capital resources 8.9 0.1 B.1 0.1 9.3 0.1
Inswrance capital reguiremeant 1.7 - 1.8 - 1.7 -
Resilience capital requirement - - 0.5 - - -
with-Profits Insurance Capital Component 20 - 1.2 - 20 -
Capifol requirements of regulaled reloted undertakings 0.7 1A 0.1 0.1 0.7 o
Capital resovrces requirement 4.4 o 36 01 4.4 0.1
Regulatory caphal surplus 4.5 - 4.5 - 49 -
1. The tier Il capitat of £602m was repaid in June 2007,
The table below summarses the realistic position of the with-profits pan of Society’s LTF:
Full year
30.06.07 30.06.06 31206
fm £&m £m
With-profits surplus 1,174 907 1,128
Risk capital margin 236 244 465
Surplus 938 663 663
Society is required to maintain o surplus in the with-profits part of the fund on o realistic basis {Peak 2). If the surplus on o realistic
basis is lower than the surplus using Peak 1 solvency rules, then a furliher copital requirement, the with-Profits Insurance Capital
Component {WPICC) is required. At H1 07, the WPICC was reduced to reflect the value of shareholder transfers of £499m {H) 04:
£nil, FY 06: £432m} within the risk capital margin calcuwiation.
{c} LGPL capital surplus
Al30.0607 At30.0506 AL31.1206
longterm longterm  Long termn
business business business
£bn £bn £bn
Tier | . 1.3 - 1.0
Upper tier It 0.2 - 0.2
Lower tier Il 0.2 - 0.2
Available capilal resources 1.5 - X
Insurance capilal requirement 0.6 - 0.6
Capital resovrces requirement 0.8 - 0.5
0.9 - 08

Regulatory capital surplus

The regulatory capitol sumplus in LGPL of £0.8bn (H1 04: £nil, FY 04: £0.8bn} is included within the IGD calculation (see note 5.02{o}).
For Society's regulatory capital calculation (on the adjusted solo basis), the regulatory capital surplus of LGPL s reduced by £0.2bn
to reflect inefigible surplus capital: this principally reflects the difference between the GAAP and reguiatory values of LGPL, As a
result, LGPL is included ol a regulatory volue of £0.7bn in Society's regulatory capital surplus,
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5.02 IFRS capital resources

{0} Group capiicl resources

The Group's total capitalresources of £9.2bn on an IFRS basis, comprise ordinary equity holders’ capital {£5.5bn} (see note 4,12),

subordinated debt (£1.4bn), ond unallocated divisible surplus {£2.3bn. including £6.3bn of Sub-fund).

{b) Society capital resources

Society has been allocated capital of £4.8bn, reflecting the significance of this cperation and the impertance of ensuring financial
strength to support long term giowth of the business. Of this totat, £1.5bn is held outside any long term fund as Society Sharehotder
Capital {SSC) of which approximately £1.0bn is within LGPL: the remainder of £3.3bnis hetd within Society's long term fund as
Shareholder Retoined Capital {(SRC). An analysis of the movement in total Society capital on the IFRS basis is provided in the table

below:

30.06.07 30.04.07
SRC 35C
Gross Tax Net Gross Tax Net
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
SRC/SSC os at 1 January 3,243 2,287
Investment retum 145 (84) -3} 98 {22) 74
Teanster from Society long term fund:
- Non profit distibution (199 40 039 ' 199 (50) 139
- With-profiss distribution . . - 50 (15) as
Net copital released from NP business 5.02(¢) 77 (23) 54 74 {23) 53
Distribution to shareholders - - - (400} - {400)
Repayment of subordinated loan capitat - . - (402) - {602)
Movement included in the statement of
recognised income and expense as {12) 24 - - .
Other . - . ae) 5 (13)
At 30 June 3.285 1,545
Held within:
LGPL - 1,044
Society 3.285 501
The total net copital released from the non profit business is £153m {see note 4.04). which comprises the net capital released from
LGPL non profit business of £76m (net of 1ax £53rm) and the net capital refeased from Sociely of £77m {net of tax £54m).
30.06.06 30.05.06
SRC 38C
Gross Tax MNat Gross Tax Net
Notes im &m £m £m £m £m
SRC/SSC as at 1 Januory 2,550 1.896
Investment retumn 104 [52) 52 70 {11} 59
Transfer from Societly long term fund:
- Nan profit distribution {157} 47 {110) 157 {47} 110
- with-profits distribution . . - 40 {12} 28
- Subordinated debt (18} 5 (13 - - -
Dividends from subsidiaries - - - 2 - 2
Net capital released from NP business 502|c) 110 {33) 77 - - -
Distribution to shoreholders - - - {50) - [50)
Movement included in the statement of
recognised income and expense 36 an 25 - - -
Other - - - (3) - 3
Al 30 June (held within Society} 2,591 2,042
2007 Intenm Results 54




AL URHTCH UG A UEDTT THUVY

5.02 IFRS capital resources (continved)

Full year Full year
31204 31204
SRC SSC
Gross Tax Ned Gross Tax Net
Notes £m £y £m £im £m im
SSC/SRC as al 1 January 2.560 1.896
mvesiment return 303 {84) 219 186 (35) 151
Transfer from Society Ic;ri'g term fund:
- Non profil distribufion {388) 116 {272} 388 me 272
- With-profits distribution - - - 25 {29) 66
- Subordinated debt {34) 10 [24) - - -
Dividends from subsidiories - - - 2 - 2
Caopital invested in subsidiaries - - - {13) - {13)
Net capital released / contibuted from NP business 5.02(c) 1,972 (592) 1,380 {717} 215 [502)
Distribution to shareholders - - - {380) - {380}
[Repayment] / issue of subordinated loan capital 1602) - {602) 402 - 602
mMovement included in the statement of
recognised income and expense {1} 2 - - -
Defemed tax asset on corporate restructure - - - 171 171
Other - . f12) 4 (8)
At 31 December 3.263 2,257
Held within:
LGPL - 950
Society 3.263 1,307
The total net capital released from the non profit business is £1,255m (se; note 4.06), which comprises the net capital contributed to
LGPL non profit business of £717m (net of tax £502m) and the net capital released from Society of £1,972m (net of tax £1,380m).
{c) Analysis of net caplial released frem non profit business
Full yeor
30.04.07 30.06.06 31,1206
1 £m £m £m
Net capital released from non profit business comprises:
New business
- Strain, before financing arrangements {142) {279} (546)
- Changes to FSA reporting and capital rules - - 278
- - Financing amangements - 94 -
Existing business
- Expected copital release, before financing orangements am 290 555
- Fingncing arangements B {26) [125)
Experience variances 49 {43) 0
Changes fo non-economic assumptions (&) {28) {70)
Annuity investment policy - - 422
Changes to FSA reperting and capital rules - - 343
Movements in non-cash ilems 7 58 {96)
Other {12) I3 27
107 77 878
Tax gross up 44 33 377
153 110 1,255

Al 31 December 2006, the SRC included £502m relating to the effect of the corporate restructure. This was offset by an equal and

opposite amount in the 5SC,
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5.02 IFRS capital resources {continued)

Expected caopital release represents the caopital ond profit generated in the period from the inforce non profit business if the

embedded value assumptions are borne outin practice. The experience variances are calculated with reference o embedded
vatue assumptions, including the apporfionment of investment return and taxin the EEV model,

Both new business strain and expected capilal release exclude required solvency margin, as this is not occounted for under IFRS.
On average, the capital invested in new non profit business, including solvency margin, is repadid from product cash flows in

approximately 4 years.

An analysis of the experience variances, non-economic assumption changes and nan-cash Hfems, all net of tax, is provided

below:

Experience variances . Fullyear
30.08.07 300606 31.12.06
£m £m £m
Persistency 1 - 4
Mortaity / morbidity 5 m -
Expenses (27) (20 {28)
BPA data loading 12 43 157
Investiment &7 2 27
Other (7} {69} {70}
. ’ o ’ ) T T ae (45} 90
Changes to non-economic assumptions Fult yeor
30.05.07 30.06.06 311206
£m im £m
Mortality / morbidity - - {27)
Expenses M 3 (50}
Negative inflation - (13) -
Other (5) - (13)
(&) (28) (90}
Movements In non-cash items Full year
30.08.07 300606 311206
£m &m £m
Deferred tax 18) 37 (123)
Deferred acquisition costs &4 130 {21)
Defemed income liabilities {42) {25) {78)
IFRS adjustment for financial reinsurance . (48] 125
Other 3 (16) 1
7 58 {76)

5.03 Group credit ratings

Society continues to be one of the two highest roted Eurcopean life assurers, Our financial strength rafings from Stondard & Poor’s,

Moody's and A.M.Bes! were maintained at AA+, Aal and A+ respectively, all with stable outlooks.

The Group's cwrent long term and short term debt ratings are. from Standard & Poor's, AA- and Al+ and, from Moody's Al and P1.
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5.04 Distributions to shareholders from Society's long term fund

{a) Calcviation ol distribution relaling to non profit and shareholder net worth

The transfer to shareholders from Society's long term fund is imited by a formula agreed with our regulator. The full year formulaiis
the aggregate of the shareholders’ share of the with-profits surplus, a smoothed invesiment return of 7% on the embedded value
of the SRC and Sub-fund and 5% on the embedded value of the non profit business of Sociely ond LGPL, adjusted 1o remove the

impoct of the contingent loan {befween SRC and LGPL) and the SNW of LGPL.

Full year Full year
30.06.07 30.04.07 30.04.06 300606 31,1206 311206
Non profit SNW  Non orofit SNW  Non profit SHNW
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Embedded value at end of penod 1,902 3,890 2,649 1.714 1,643 3.828
Less: subordinated debt - - - {602) - -
Less: LGPL shoreholder cogj!ol - (1.313) - - - {1,280}
Contingent loan ! 5N (521) - - 571 {57H)
Add back: pension deficit f market referenced
fees atirbutable to SNW - 37 - 38 (5) 40
add back; distributions - 139 - 110 - 272
2,423 2,232 2,649 1.260 2,209 2,309
Distnbution Formule - full year 5.0% 7.0%
Distibution formula - half year 2.5% 15% 2.5% 35%
Distribution after tox &1 78 67 43 Ho 162
Tax gross up 2% 34 29 18 47 49
Distnbution before tax 87 112 94 61 157 231
(b} Analysis of distribution to shareholders
Full year
30.08.07 30.05.06 31.12.06
£m im £m
Mon profit transfer ) 139 1o 272
with-profits transfer 35 28 66
Transter from Society's long term fund 174 138 338
Subordinated debi interest - 13 24
Distribution to shareholders after tax 174 151 362
Tax gross up 75 64 155
Distribution 1o shareholders before fax 249 215 517
5.05 Group cash flow statement
The table below shows the cash flows in the period relating to the Group’s parent company.
Full year
30.08.07 30.06.06 NN206
£m £m £m
Dividends received:
UK §fe and pensions 400 50 380
investment management . - 50
Other - 2 3
400 52 433
Dividend distributions to equity holders of the Company during the peried (248) {234} {349)
Repayment of infra-group subordinated debt 405 . .
Proceeds from issue of equity 3 12 18
Proceeds from issue of innovative tier | bomowings 595 - -
Capital injected into the USA operation {45) - -
Repayment of converible bond - - [525)
working copital movements (349) (sl {52
‘Net cashinflow / {outflow] N o 7 240 {178} (478)
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| UK funds under management

At 30.06.07 At300606 Al31.1206
£m £m £m

e e e e PR

252,935 211,140 232,949

Total investments

Represented by
Index tracking funds:

- UK equities 75,682 61,724 68,531
- Overseas equities ’ 48,659 37,440 42,114
- Fixed interest 307 25,684 29,074
- Index linked 23116 20,390 21.5%4
- Cash/depaosits : 1,153 238 452
Totalindex tracking funds 179,507 146,200 161,967
Actively managed funds : : 67,438 &1,488 66,503

Structured solutions 5,990 3.452 4,499

—_——— e ——— - e —— e — e — -

252,935 211,140 232,969

By investment gpproach

Index equilies 124,321 99,186 110,644
Active bonds [incleding index linked funds and cash] 44,834 41,71} 44,713
Index bonds (including index linked funds ang cash} 55186 47,014 51,322
Active equities 11,528 10,406 10.966
Property 10,847 9.081 10,444
Private equity 229 290 k3

Structured solutions 5,790 3.452 4,499

252,935 211,140 232,949

By source of business T

Institutional funds under monagement: :

- Managed pension funds pooled 160,583 128,110 142,714
- Managed pension funds segregated 3.489 4,506 4,10
- Structured solutions 5,9%0 3,452 4,499
- Other 6414 5,458 6217
Total institutional funds under management 174,654 141,724 157,533
UK Operations {unit trusts - excluding life fund investment} 11.889 10,339 §1,759
UK Operations [life and general insurance funds) 64,3%0 59,075 63,677

o 252,935 211,140 232,969

1. Exchudes nstitutional Investments in unil trust funds.
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] New business
a) UK life and pensions new business APE by quarter

3 months 3 months 3 months 3 monihs 3 months I months
30.08.07 31.03.07 311206 30.02.06 30.04.06 31.03.06
£m £m £m £m £m £'m
Protection ’ ' i 55 56 59 81 55 56
Annuities 44 42 53 50 38 k!
Savings
- Unit inked bonds . 62 74 80 50 60 61
- Pensions. stakehoider and other non profit 54 49 40 55 52 41
with-profits , 70 62 41 58 52 48
Total T 295 303 293 284 257 239
r
b) UK file and pensions new business annual premiums by quarter
3 months 3 months 3 months A monihs 3 months 3 menths
30.05.07 3.0307 311208 30.09.06 30.06.06 31.03.06
£m £m &m £m £m £m
Protection 55 56 59 61 55 56
Annuities - - - - - -
Savings
- Unit inked bonds - - . - - -
- Pensions, stakeholder and other non profit 7 43 3t 3 37 27
with-profits 45 as 25 30 33 29
Total 127 134 115 122 125 112
¢) ' UK lifle and pensions new business single premlums by quarier
3 months 3 months Imonths 3 monihs I menths A months
30.06.07 N.0¥07 31,1206 300006 30.06.06 - 31.03.06
£m tm Em £m £m £m
Protection ' - - - - - -
Annuities 444 418 520 507 375 333
Savings
- Unit inked bonds 814 737 799 600 508 505
- Pensions, stakeholder and other non profit 373 242 278 245 152 142
Wilh-profils 254 248 179 273 185 F90
Total 1.487 1.687 1.776 1.625 1.320 1,270
d) Internationat life and pensions new business APE by quarter
3 meonths 3 months Imenths  3months  3months 3 months
30.08.07 31.03.07 311204 300906 30.06.06 31.03.06
£m £m £m £m £m £m
USA 1 1 10 11 10 "
Netheronds [ 8 7 [ 7 9
Fronce 17 10 7 5 13
Total 34 29 24 22 30 27

2007 Interim Results 41




LY PVUI A e S )
| New Business (continued)
e} International lite and pensions new business annual premiums by quarter

3 months 3 moenths 3 months 3 months I menths 3 menths
30.06.07 31.03.07 31.12.04 30.05.06 30.06.06 31.03.06

£m £m im £m £m im
usa A 11 10 H 10 n
Nethertands 2 3 3 2 4 3
France 4 2 ] 2 8 1
Jolal 22 1] 14 15 22 15
f) International e and pensions new business single premlums by quarter
3 months 3 months 3 months 3 months 3 months 3 monihs
30.04.07 31.03.07 3131206 30.09.08 300606 31.0306
£m £m £m £m £m £m
USA - - - - - -
Metherlonds 35 56 40 34 37 59
France 78 78 50 et} 48 59
Total 13 v " 134 90 72 85 118

g) Retail invesiments new business APE by quarter

3 months 3 months 3 months 3 months I months 3months
30.04.07 31.03.07 31.12.06 30.09.06 30.06.06 31.03.06

. £m £m im £m £m £m
UK 87 80 23 LA ] 218 124
France 1 1 - ] I -
Total 88 81 23 92 29 124
h) Retail investments new business annual premivms by quarter .
3 months Imonths  3months I menihs Imonths Imonths
30.04,07 31.03.07 31206 30,0906 30,0606 31.03.04
£Em £m £m £m £m £m
UK 7 5 4 é & 4
france - - - - - -
Tetal 7 5 4 6 6 4
}] Retail investments new business single premiums by quarter
3 moenths 3 months 3 months A months 3 menths I months
30.06.07 31.03.07 31.12.06 30.0%.06 00606 31.03.08
fm fm £m £m £m £m
Uk, 803 748 2,275 853 2,120 1.195
France % ] 8 7 5 5
Total ' 812 754 2,283 840 2,125 1.200
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] New Business {(continued}
i} Analysis of total UK APE

3 months 3 months 3 months J months A months 3 months
30.06.07 31.02.07 311206 30.09.06 30.06.06 31.03.06

£m £m Em &m &m £m
independent financicl advisers 234 245 265 243 196 222
Tied . 85 76 209 a3 226 85
Direct 12 10 7 7 15 10
Total UK individual : 341 351 481 333 437 nz
Individual ife and pensions - 254 271 250 242 219 193
Retailinvestments 87 8O 231 91 218 124
Total UK individval '_-k - T an as1 481 333 437 317
Group life and pensions 41 az 43 42 38 46
Total UK - : ag2 383 524 375 475 363

k) Institutional fund manegement new business by quarter

3 months 3 months Amonihs 3 months 3 months 3 months
30.06.07 31.03.07 31.12.06 30.09.06 300606 21.03.06

£m Em £im £m £m £m
Managed pension funds’ .
Pocled funds "’ 10,844 4,922 5.801 3814 4,500 L3763
Segregated funds ' 380 48 1 8 538 41
Total managed funds 11,024 4,990 5.802 3.822 5.038 3.824
Other funds? 141 89 159 109 157 1,739
Total C 11,167 5,059 5.961 3,931 5,195 5.563

|. New monies from pension fund clients of Legal & General Assurance {Pensions Management] Limited exclude £7 8bn [{H1 04: £1.7bn, FY D4: £4.4bn)
hald through the year on o temporary basis, generally as part of a porioclo reconstruction.
2. Includes sagragoted property, properly partnerships, ventures, alfemative investments and instifutional clients excluding institutional trusts.
et 1
.

Ty NERCLAN
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] European Embedded Value Methodology
Basis of preparation

The supplementary financial siatements have been prepared in accordance with the European Embedded Value {EEV) Principles
issyed in May 2004 by the European Insurance CFO Forum.

Covered business

The Group uses EEV methodology to value Individual and Group life assurance, pensions ond annuily businéss written in the UK,
Continental Europe and the US and within our UK managed pension funds company.

All other businesses are accounted for on the IFRS basis adopted in the primary financial statements,

There is no distinction made between insurance and investment contracts in our life and pensions businesses as there is under IFRS,

Description of methodology

The objective of EEV is to provide shareholders with more realistic mformation on the financial position and current performance of
the Group than is provided within the primary financial statements. .

The methodology requires assets of an insurance company, as reported in the primary financial statements, to be attributed
between those supporting the covered business and the remainder. The method accounts for assets in the covered business on an
EEV basis and the remainder of the Group’s ossets on the IFRS basis adopted in the primary financial statements.

The EEV methodology recognises as profit from the covered business the fotal of:
i. cash fransfers during the relevant period from the covered business to the remainder of the Group's assets; and

ii. the movement in the present value of future distributable profits to shareholders arising from the covered business over the
relevant reporting period.

Embedded value

Shareholders' equity on the EEV basis comprises the embedded value of the covered business plus the shareholders’ equity on
other businesses, less the value included for purchased interests in ong term business. '

2 ‘
The embedded value is the sum of the shareholder net worth [SNW) and the valve of the in-force business (VIF}. SNW is defined as
those amounts, within covered business [both within the long term fund and held outside the long term fund but used to support
long term business), which are regarded either as required capital or which represent free surplus. "

The VIF is the present value of fulure shareholder profits arising from the covered business, projected using best estimate
assumptions. less an appropriale deduction for the cost.of holding the required level of capital ond the time value of financial
options and guarantees (FOGs).

LI

Service companies

All services relating 1o the UK life and pensions business are charged on a cost recovery basis, with the exception of investment
management services provided to Legal & General Pensions Limited [LGPL}, which have been charged at market referenced rates
since 1 January 2007, and Legal & General Assurance Sociely Limited {Society). which will be charged ot market referenced rates
from 1 July 2007. Profits arising on the provision of these services are valued on a look through basis.

As the EEV methodology incorporates the future capitalised cost of these internal investment management services, the equivalent
IFRS profits have been removed from the Invesiment managemeni segment and are instead included in the resulls of the UK life
and pensions segment on an EEV basis.

The capitalised value of future profits emerging from internal investment management services are therefore included in the
embedded value and new business contribution calculations for the UK life and pensions segment. Howevaer, the historical profits
which have emerged coniinue to be reported in the IFRS basis shareholders' equity of the Investment management segment. Since
the look through into service companies includes only fulure profits and losses, these amounts must be eliminoted from the closing
embedded value and in order to reconcile the profits arising in the financial period within each segment with the net assets on the
opening and closing balonce sheet, a fransfer of IFRS profits for the period from the UK life and pensions SNW is deemed to occur.
New business

New business premiums reflect income arising from the sale of new contracts during the reporting period and any changes o
existing condracts, which were not anticipated at the outset of the contract.

In-force business comprises previousty written single premium, regular premiurn and recurrent single premium confracts.

DWP rebates have not been freated as recument and are included in single premium new business when received.
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]| Evropean Embedded Value Methodology (continued)

New business confribution arising from the new business premiums writien during the reporfing period has been calculated on the
same economic and operating assumptions used in the embedded valve at the end of the financial period. This has then been
rolled forward to the end of the financial period using the risk discount rate applicable at the end of the reporting period.

The present value of future new business premiums [PYNBP) has been calculated and expressed at the point of sale. The PYNBP is
equivolent to the total single premiums plus the discounted valve of regular premivms expected to be received over the term of
the contracts using the same economic and operating assumptions used for the embedded value at the end of the financial
period. The new busingis margin is defined as new business coniribution at the end of the reporting period divided by the PYNBP.
The premium volumes and projection assumptions used to calculale the PYNBP are the same as those used to calculate new
business confribution.

Projection assumptions

Cash fiow projections are determined using realistic assumpilions for each component of cash flow and for each policy group.
Future economic and investment return agssumptions are based on conditions at the end of the financial year. Future investment
returns are projected by one of two methods. The first method is based on an assumed investment return attributed to assets ot their
market value. The second, which is used in the US, where the investments of that subsidiary are subsiantialty all fixed interest,
projects the cash flows from the cument portfolio of assets and assumés an investrment return on reinvestment of surplus cash flows,
The assumed discount and inflation rates are consistent with the investment return assumptions.

Detailed projection assumptions including mortality, persistency, morbidity and expenses reflect recent operating experience and
are reviewed annually. Allowangce is made for future iImprovements in annuitant mortality based on experience and externally
published data. Favourable changes in operating expenence are not anticipated uniil the improvement in experience has been
observed.

All costs relating to the covered business. whether incurred in the covered business or elsewhere in the Group, are allocated to that
business. The expense assumptlions used for the cash Aow projections therefore include the full cost of servicing this business.

Tax

The projections take inte account all fax which is expected 1o be paid, based on best estimate assumptions, applying current
legislation and prociice together with known or expected future changes. This includes tax which would arise if surplus assets within
the covered business were eventually to be distributed. The future benefit of certain curent UK tax rules on the apportionment of
income has not been reflected. It is expected that these rules will be omended as part of the curent consultation on life assuronce
taxation, such that the benefit is not expected fo be realised. -

Allowance for risk e

Aggregote risks within the covered business are allowed for through the following principal mechanisms:

i. setting required capital levels with reference to both the Crbup's internal risk based copital models, and an assessment of
the strengih of regulatory reserves in the covered business;

ii. allowing explicitly for the time value of financial options and guarantees within the Group's products; and

ii. setting risk discount rates by deriving o Group level risk margin to be applied consistently to local risk free rates.
21,

Required capital and free surplus

Regulatory capital for UK life and pensicns business is provided by assets backing the with-profits business or by the SNW. The SNW
comprises the sum of the values of the Shareholder Retained Capital {SRC), the Sub-fund and the shareholder capital within LGPL.

For UK with-profits business, the required caopital is eevered by the surplus within the with-profits part of the fund and no effect is
atkributed to shareholders except for the burn-through cosi, which is described later. This freatment is consistent with the Principles
and Practices of Financial Management for this part of the fund.

Far UK non profit business, the required capital will be maintained ot no less than the level of the EU minimum solvency requirerment.
This level, fogether with the margins for adverse deviation in the regulatory reserves, is, in aggregate, in excess of internal capital
targets assessed in conjunction with the Individual Capital Adequacy (ICA) assessment.

In Society, the SRC is either required to cover EU solvency margin or is encumbered becouse its distibution to shareholders is
restricied due 1o previous understandings with the Financial Services Authority. I is theretore classified as required capital and not as
free surplus for the purposes of EEV reporting. SRC is valued by assuming it is distributed from the LTF over o 20 year period with
allowance for tax poyabile on distribution. For this purpose. distribution of the SRC is restricted such that there is always sufficient SRC
left to cover the EU solvency margin for in-force non profit business in Society.

In LGPL, the shareholder capital covers the EU minimum solvency margin for the business.

The initial strains relating to new non profit business, together with the related EU solvency margin, are supporied by releases from
existing non profit business, the SRC and LGPL shareholder capital. As a consequence, the writing of new business defers the release
of capital from the SRC and LGPL shareholder capital to free surplus. Any assets in LGPL shareholder capital in excess of those
required to cover the EU minimum solvency margin are trealed as free surplus. Cost of holding required caopital is defined os the
difference between the value of the required capital and the present value of future releases of that capital, for new business.

|
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1} European Embedded Value Methodology (continued)

the cost of copitalis taken as the difference in the value of that capital assuming it was available for release immediately and the
present value of the future releases of that capital. As the investment retum, net of tax, on that capital is less than the risk discount
rate, there is a resulting cost of capital which is reflected in the value of new business.

The Sub-fund is also freated as required capital, because its diskribution to shcreholders is restricted by Scx:lew s Articles of
Association.

For our UK managed pension funds business, management’s capital policy has been used 10 set the level of required capital. The
balance of net assets within the UK managed funds business is treated as free surpius.

For Legal & General America, the Company Action Leve! [CAL} of capital has been freated as required capital for modeling
purpases. The CAL is the regulatory capital level at which the company would have to take prescribed action, such as submission
of plans to the State insurance regulator, but would be able to conlinue operating on the existing basis, The CAL is curently twice
the level of capital at which the regulotor is permitted to take confrol of the business.

For Legal & General Netherlands, 100% of EU minimurm solvency margin has been used for all EV maodelling purposes for all products
both with and without FOGs. The level of capital has been determined using risk based capital techniques.

For Legal & General Fronce, 100% of EU minimum solvency margin has been used for EV modelling purposes for all products both
with and without FOGs. The level of copital has been determined using risk based capital techniques.

The contribution from new business for our Overseas businesses reflects an appropriate allowance for the cost of holding the
required capital.

Financial options and guarantees
In the UK, all financial options and guarantees (FOGs) are within the UK life and pensions business.

Under the EEV Principles an altowance for time value of FOGs is required where o financial option exists which is exercisable at the
discretion of the policyholder. These types of option principally arise within the with-profits part of the fund and their time volue is
recognised within the with-profits burn-through cost described below. Additional financial options for non profit business exist only
for a smoll amount of deferred annuily business where guaranteed early retirement and cash commutation terms apply when the
policyholders choose their actudl retrement date.

Further financia! guaraniees exist for nan profit business, in relation to irlm'dex-linked annuities where capped or collared restrictions
apply. Due to the nature of these restrictions and the manner in which they vary depending on the prevailing inflation conditions,
they are also treated as FOGs and a fime value cost recognised accordingty.

The time value of FOGs has been calculated stochastically using a large number of real world economic scenarios derived from

assumptions consistent with the deterministic EEV assumptions and allowing for appropriate management actions where applicable.

The monagement action primarily relates to the setting of bonus rates. Future regular and terminal bonuses on participating
business within the projections are set in @ manner consistent with expected future returns available on assets deemed to back the
poficies within the stochastic scenarios.

In recognising the residual value of any projected surplus assets within the with-profits part of the fund in the deterministic projection,
it is assumed that terminat bonuses are increased to exhaust all of the assets in the part of the fund over the future lifetime of the in-
force with-profits policies. However, under stochastic modelling, there may be some extrerme economic scenarios when the total

projected assets within the with-profits part of the fund are insufficient to pay all projected policyholder claims and associated costs,

The average additional shareholder cost arising from this shortfall has been included in the fime value cost of options and
guarantees and is referred to s the with-profits burn-through cost.

Economic scenarios have been used fo assess the time valtue of the financial guorantees for non profit business by using the
inflation rate generated in each scenario. The inflation rate used to project index-linked annuities will be constrained in certain real
world scenarios, for example, where negative inflation occurs byt the annuily payments do not reduce below pre-existing levels,
The time value cost of FOGs allows for the projected average cost of these constrained payments for the index-linked annuities, 11
aso allows for the small additional cost of the guaranteed early retrement and cash commutation terms for the minority of
deferred annuity business where such guaraniees have been written.

In the US, FOGs relate o guaranieed minimum crediting rates ond surender values on a ronge of contracts. The guaranieed
surrender value of the contract is based on the accumuioted valve of the contract including accrued interest. The crediting rates
are discretionary but related to the accounting income for the amortising bond portfolic. The majority of the guaranteed minimum
crediting rates are between 4% and 5%. The assets backing these contracts are invesied in US doliar denominated fixed interest
securities.

In the Netherands, there are two types of guarantees which have been separately provided for; interest rote guarantees and
maturity guaraniees. Certain contracis provide an inlerest rote guarantee where there is a minimum crediting rate based on the
higher of 1-year Euribor and the policy guarantee rate. This guarantee applies on a monthly basis. Certain unit linked contracts
provide a guaranteed minimum value at maturity where the maturity amount is the higher of the fund value and a guorantee
amount. The fund values for both these contfracts are invested in Euro denominated fixed interest securities.
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]] European Embedded Value Methodology {continued) T

In France, FOGs which have been separately provided for relate to guaranteed minimum crediting rates and surender values on a
range of contracts. The guaranteed surmender value of the contract is the accumulated value of the contract including accrued
bonuses. The bonuses are based on the accounting income for the amortising bond portiolios plus income and releases from
realised gaoins on any equity type investments. Policy liabilities equal guaranteed surender values. Local statutory accounting rules
require the establishment of a specific liability when the accounting income for a company is less than 123% of the guoranteed
minimum credited returns, although this has never been reqmred In general, the guaranteed annual bonus rates are between 0%
and 4.5%.

Risk discount rate

The risk discount rate [RDR} is a combination of the risk free rate and a risk margin, which reflects the residual risks inherent in the
Group's covered businesses, after taking cccounf of prudenhcl margins in the statutory provisions, the required capital and the
specific allowance for FOGs.

The risk margin has been determined based on'dn assessment of the Group's weighted average cost of capital (WACC). This
assessment incorporates a beta for the Group, which measures the comelation of movements in the Group's share price to
movements in a relevant index. Beta values therefore oltow for the market’s assessment of the risks inherent in the business relative
o other companias in the chosen index.

The WACC is derived from the Group’s cost of equity and debt, and the proportion of equity io debt in the Group's capital
structure measured using morket vaiues. Each of these three parameters should be forward looking, otthough informed by historic
information. The cost of equity is calculated as the risk free rate plus the equity risk premium for the chosen index multiplied by the
company's beta. Forward-looking or adjusted betas make allowance for the obiserved tendency for betos to revert to | ond
therefore a weighted average of the historic beta and 1 tends to be a better estimate of the company’s beto for the future period.
We have computed the WACC using an arithmetical average of forward-locking bedas agaoinst the FISE 100 index.

The cost of debt used in the WACC calculotions takes account of the actual locked-in rates for our senior and subordinated long
term debt. All debt interest attracts tax relief at a rate of 28%.

whilst the WACC approach is a relatively simple and fransparent calculation to apply. subjectivity remains within a number of the
assumptions. Management believes that the chosen margin, together with the levels of required capital, the inherent strength of
the Group's regulatary reserves and the explicit deduction for the cost of options and guarantees, is appropriate 1o reflect the risks
within the covered business. For these results the risk margin has been maintained ot 3.0%.

s

A similar approach will be adopted when risk margins are reassessed in future periods.

Key assumptions are summarised below: )
KT AT T
Risk free rate Derived from gross redempilon ytelcis on relevant gilt portfolio
Equity risk premium 3.0% (UK only} ' Sk
Property risk premium 2.0% (UK only)
Risk margin _ 3.0% . _:.'
Analysis of profit

Operating profit is identified at a level which reflects an assumed longer term level of investment return,

The contribution to operating profit in a period is‘attributed to four sources:
i. new business;

ii. the management of in-force business;

i. development costs; ond

v. return on shareholder net worth.

Further profit contributions arise from actual invesiment return differing from thé assumed long term investment return {investment
return variances), and from the effect of economic assumption changes.

The confribution from new business represents the value recognised at the end of each period from new business written in that
period, after allowing for the actual cost of acquiring the business and of establishing the required technical provisions and reserves
and after making allowance for the cost of capital. New business contributions are catculated using ¢losing assumptions.
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]| European Embedded Value Methedology (continued)

The contribution from in-force business is calculated using opening assumptions and comprises:
i. expected return - the discount earned from the value of business in-force at the start of the year;

ii. experience variances - the variance in the actual experience over the reporting pernod from that assumed in the value of
business in-force as at the start of the year, and

iit. operating assumption changes - the effects of changes in future assumptions, other than changes in economic assumptions
from those used in voluing the business al the start of the year. These changes are made prospectively irom the end of the
yeor.

Deavelopment costs are associated with investment in building a new enterprise or exceptional development aclivity over a defined
period.

The contribution from shareholder net worth comprises the increase in embedded value based on assumptions at the start of the
year in respect of:

i, encumbered assets within the covered business - principally the unwind of the discount rote;
i. LGPLshareholder copital — the expected investment return; and

ii. residual assets - the expected investment return,

Further profit confributions arise from actual investment returns differing from the assumed long term investment returns (investment
return variances) and from the effect of economic assumption changes.

Investment refurn varionces represent the effect of actual investment performance and changes to investrmeni policy on
shareholder net worth and in-force business from that assumed at the beginning of the period.

Economic assumption changes comprise the effect of changes in economic variables on shareholder net worth and in-force
business from thot assumed ot the beginning of the period, which are beyond the control of management, including associated
changes to valuoation bases 1o the exient that they are reflected in revised assumptions.

v IFRS basis of preparation

The Group's financial information for the period ending 30 June 2007 has been prepared in accordance with the Listing Rules of
the Financiol Services authority. The Group's financial information has been prepared in accordance with the accounting
policies that the Group expects to adopt for the 2007 year end which are consistent with the principol accounting policies
which are set out in the Group's 2006 conseclidated financial stotements. The principal accounting pelicies adopted by the
Group for the 20046 vear end, as sef out in the Group's 2004 consolidated financial statements, were consisteni with IFRSs issued
by the IASB as adopted by the European Commission (EC) for use in the European Union {EU). The Group has chosen not to
adopt |AS 34 'Interim Financial Reporting' in preparing its 2007 interim accounts since adoption of this standard is not mandatory.
The Group intends to apply 1AS 34 in the 2008 inferim accounts.

The preparation of the financial information includes the use of estimates ond ossumptions that offect items reported in the
consolidated balance sheet and income statement and the disclosure of confingent assets and figbilities at the date of the
financial information. Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of curent circumstances and
future events and actions. actual resulls may differ from those estimates, possibly significantly.

The accounting policies have been consistenily applied to all periods presented.

. END




